TO:

Public Document Pack
SOUTHEND-ON-SEA BOROUGH COUNCIL

Development Control Committee
Date: Wednesday, 3rd June, 2020
Time: 5.00 pm
Place: Virtual Meeting via MS Teams

Contact: Tim Row - Principal Democratic Services Officer
Email: committeesection@southend.gov.uk

AGENDA

Apologies for Absence
Declarations of Interest
Supplementary Report

Contents List and Introduction

20/00311/BC3M - Car Park at Former Gas Works Site, Eastern Esplanade
(Kursaal Ward) (Pages 5 - 36)

20/00328/BC3M - Southchurch Park East, Lifstan Way (Thorpe Ward)
(Pages 37 - 62)

20/00655/FUL - 85 Western Road, Leigh-on-Sea (West Leigh Ward)
(Pages 63 - 114)

20/00580/FUL - Morrison's, Western Approaches (St Laurence Ward)
(Pages 115 - 140)

The Chairman & Members of the Development Control Committee:

Councillor N Ward (Chair)

Councillors M Borton (Vice-Chair), B Ayling, J Beck, A Chalk, D Cowan, A Dear,
F Evans, D Garston, S Habermel, D Jarvis, A Jones, H McDonald, C Mulroney,
A Thompson, S Wakefield and C Walker



This page is intentionally left blank



DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE

AGENDA: 3 June 2020

WARD APP/REF NO. ADDRESS
Main Plans Report
Car Park At Former Gas Works Site
Kursaal 20/00311/BC3M
Eastern Esplanade
Southchurch Park East
Thorpe 20/00328/BC3M _
Lifstan Way
) 85 Western Road
West Leigh 20/00655/FUL )
Leigh-On-Sea
Morrison’s
St Laurence 20/00580/FUL

Western Approaches




(i)

(ii)

(iii)
(iv)

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE

INTRODUCTION

Recommendations in capitals at the end of each report are those of the
Corporate Director of Place, are not the decision of the Committee and are
subject to Member consideration.

All plans have been considered in the context of the Borough Council's
Environmental Charter. An assessment of the environmental implications of
development proposals is inherent in the development control process and implicit

in the reports.

Reports will not necessarily be dealt with in the order in which they are printed.

The following abbreviations are used in the reports:-

BLP -
DAS -
DEFRA -
DPD -
EA -
EPOA -
DCLG -
NPPF -
NPPG -
SPD -
SSSI -

SPA -

Ramsar Site —

Background Papers

(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)
(vi)
(vii)

NB

Borough Local Plan

Design & Access Statement

Department of Environment, Food and Rural Affairs

Development Plan Document

Environmental Agency

Essex Planning Officer's Association

Department of Communities and Local Government

National Planning Policy Framework

National Planning Practice Guidance

Supplementary Planning Document

Sites of Special Scientific Interest. A national designation. SSSIs
are the country's very best wildlife and geological sites.

Special Protection Area. An area designated for special protection
under the terms of the European Community Directive on the
Conservation of Wild Birds.

Describes sites that meet the criteria for inclusion in the list of
Wetlands of International Importance under the Ramsar
Convention. (Named after a town in Iran, the Ramsar Convention
is concerned with the protection of wetlands, especially those
important for migratory birds)

Planning applications and supporting documents and plans
Application worksheets and supporting papers
Non-exempt contents of property files

Consultation and publicity responses

NPPF and NPPG

Core Strategy

Borough Local Plan

Other letters and papers not taken into account in preparing this report but received
subsequently will be reported to the Committee either orally or in a supplementary

report.



DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE

Use Classes
Class A1 - Shops
Class A2 - Financial & Professional Services
Class A3 - Restaurants & Cafes
Class A4 - Drinking Establishments
Class A5 - Hot Food Take-away
Class B1 - Business
Class B2 - General Industrial
Class B8 - Storage or Distribution
Class C1 - Hotels
Class C2 - Residential Institutions
Class C3 - Dwellinghouses
Class C4 - Small House in Multiple Occupation
Class D1 - Non-Residential Institutions
Class D2 - Assembly and Leisure
Sui Generis - A use on its own, for which any change of use will require planning
permission



This page is intentionally left blank



Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/00311/BC3M

Reference:

20/00311/BC3M

Application Type:

Borough Council Regulation 3-Major

Kursaal 4

Ward:

Proposal: Resurface existing car park and layout additional coach and
car parking

Address: Car Park At Former Gas Works Site, Eastern Esplanade,
Southend-On-Sea

Applicant: Southend On Sea Borough Council

Agent: Sharon Harrington of Southend Borough Council

Consultation Expiry:

19th March 2020

Expiry Date:

21st May 2020

Case Officer:

Charlotte White

Plan Nos:

MW192020 (Location Plan), MW,1920202 (Block Plan),
Design and Access Statement, MW,192020 Resurfacing
Plan.

Recommendation:

GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION, subject to conditions

-

BURNABY ROAD

37059 )

4
ErIETTY MEWS )

=l
Sts =
@

cZ VG
@

«

i 8

78 50 4
=

-l
20 b 26 = )

99 0} 25

RETORT CLOSE
2

8 1 11

ol

1Zol

g9 OLES |y g ol 48
)

651

1 M1a

VIETCRIA ROAD

B St gy

Elsub Sty
Melville

Mo g

Hatel




11

1.2

1.3

2.1

2.2

2.3

Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/00311/BC3M

Site and Surroundings

The site constitutes a previous gas works site. The site has since been cleared and is
currently, lawfully used as a car park, with temporary planning permission granted under
reference 18/00634/BC3M to use the vacant site as a temporary car park for a period of
5 years. The existing car park has separate points of access and egress from Eastern
Esplanade.

The site has a frontage to both Eastern Esplanade (to the south) and Burnaby Road (to
the north). The surrounding area is mixed in character with residential dwellings, hotels
and commercial units in the wider surrounding area.

The site is located in flood zone 3a. There is a Conservation Area to the west of the site
(Eastern Esplanade Conservation Area) which includes Grade Il Listed Buildings and
locally listed buildings. Within the Southend Central Area Action Plan (SCAAP) (2018)
the site is located within the Central Seafront Policy Area. The SCAAP identifies the
area to the front of the site as a key public realm improvement area and part of the
seafront landmark area.

The Proposal

Planning permission is sought to resurface the northern/rear part of the car park with
black asphalt and layout additional coach and car parking. There are currently 176 car
parking spaces on the site including 8 disables spaces and 10 motorcycle spaces and
19 coach parking spaces. It is proposed to provide an additional 83 parking spaces,
resulting in a total of 259 spaces on the site. No additional motorcycle spaces are
proposed (10 retained), an additional 6 disabled spaces are proposed (resulting in a
total of 14 disabled spaces. An additional 8 coach spaces are proposed, resulting in a
total of 27 coach spaces on site (although it is noted that the applicant has stated that
up to 40 coaches could be parked on the site, with the car park being used in a flexible
way.

The Design and Access Statement submitted indicates that the access to the car park
will be via the existing entrance and exit from Eastern Esplanade. Pedestrian access is
step free. The coach parking will be operated as a pre-book car park but with flexibility
to accommodate pay and display as required.

The Design and Access Statement submitted states that the proposal is to resurface the
existing hard standing area with black asphalt, layout formal car and coach parking
and provide ANPR (Automatic Number Plate Recognition) security systems. It is stated
that the car park gates will be closed overnight at 10pm, except on the days of main
organised events such as the Seafront Fire Work Displays, albeit, the information
submitted indicates that the car park did close at 10pm during the firework displays at
the end of last year. It is stated that the existing lighting columns will be retained which
have adjustable control of lux (i.e. luminance) levels and are on a timer. It is stated that
the existing landscaping will be retained to the southern boundary of the site with further
planting undertaken where appropriate. The Design and Access Statement states that it
is proposed to reuse the existing site drainage with the new car park surface laid to a
slight fall to shed water to the existing drains.



2.4

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

4.1

4.2

4.3

Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/00311/BC3M

The application has been submitted with a Design and Access Statement, Noise Impact
Assessment, Geo-Environmental Investigation, Air Quality Assessment, Transport
Assessment and Flood Risk Assessment.

Relevant Planning History

The site has a fairly extensive planning history. The most relevant planning history is
outlined below:

18/00634/BC3M - Use vacant site as temporary car park (for a period of five years) and
widen existing entrance onto Eastern Esplanade, changes to hard and soft landscaping,
boundary treatments and associated works — Temporary planning permission granted.

13/00869/EXTM - Hybrid Application to demolish the existing buildings, erect mixed
development comprising 216 flats, 64 bedroom hotel, restaurant and retail floor space in
4,5, 7 and 12 storey blocks with piazza, semi-underground and surface car parks, cycle
parking, associated infrastructure (Full Application) and use the land fronting Burnaby
Road for affordable housing (Outline Application) (Application to extend the time limit for
implementation of 10/00140/FULM granted on 16/08/2010) — Allowed at appeal.

10/00140/FULM - Hybrid Application to demolish the existing buildings, erect mixed
development comprising 216 flats, 64 bedroom hotel, restaurant and retail floor space in
4,5, 7 and 12 storey blocks with piazza, semi-underground and surface car parks, cycle
parking, associated infrastructure (Full Application) and use the land fronting Burnaby
Road for affordable housing (Outline Application) — Planning permission granted.

Representation Summary

Public Consultation

150 neighbouring properties were consulted, a site notice displayed and the application
was advertised in the press. 3 letters of representation have been received which make
the following summarised comments:

e Concerns relating to coaches parking/stopping in the entrance to the Gas Works

car park and road and blocking access to Audley Court.

Concerns relating to the entrance and exit of the car park.

Increase in rubbish.

Concerns relating to lack of landscaping and trees and benches

Uneven and dangerous footpaths.

Concerns relating to the flood lights — flood lights directed to apartments in Retort

Close, making sleeping impossible.

e Concerns that coaches leave their engines running whilst parked, and request to
limit diesel exhaust.

Cadent
There is apparatus in the vicinity which may be affected by the activities specified.

Highways Team
No objections raised



4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

6.1

Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/00311/BC3M

Parks

The development site is located approximately 35m from the Southend Marshes SSSI
and Ramsar Site. There should be no negative impact to the surrounding environment
which includes Southend beaches and marshes. Request a condition that landscaping
is agreed before opening the site.

Council’s SuDS Engineers
Requests additional information.

Officer comment: A condition has been recommended in this respect.

Environmental Health
Raises no objection — recommends conditions relating to construction and
contamination.

Environment Agency
No objection.

Planning Policy Summary
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2019)

Core Strategy (2007): Policies KP1 (Spatial Strategy), KP2 (Development Principles),
KP3 (Implementation and Resources), CP3 (Transport and Accessibility), CP4 (The
Environment and Urban Renaissance) and CP6 (Community Infrastructure)

Development Management Document (2015): Policies DM1 (Design Quality), DM2 (Low
Carbon and Efficient Use of Resources), DM3 (Efficient and Effective Use of Land),
Policy DM5 (Southend-on-Sea’s Historic Environment) Policy DM6 (The Seafront),
DM14 (Environmental Protection) and DM15 (Sustainable Transport Management)

Southend Central Area Action Plan (SCAAP) (2018) Policies DS3 (Landmarks and
Landmark Buildings), DS4 (Flood Risk Management and Sustainable Drainage), DS5
(Transport, Access and Public Realm) and CS1 (Central Seafront Policy Area
Development Principles).

Design & Townscape Guide (2009)

CIL Charging Schedule (2015)

Planning Considerations

The main considerations in relation to this application are the principle of the
development, design and impact on adjoining heritage assets, traffic and transportation
matters, impact on residential amenity and the environment, flood risk and drainage

considerations and CIL (Community Infrastructure Levy). The planning history is a
material consideration in the determination of the application.



7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/00311/BC3M

Appraisal
Principle of Development

Paragraph 117 of the NPPF states: Planning policies and decisions should promote an
effective use of land in meeting the need for homes and other uses, whilst safeguarding
and improving the environment and ensuring safe and healthy living conditions.
Strategic policies should set out a clear strategy for accommodating objectively
assessed needs, in a way that makes as much use as possible of previously-developed
or ‘brownfield’ land. Policy KP2 of the Core Strategy requires ‘all new
development...make the best use of previously developed land, ensuring that sites and
buildings are put to best use.” Policy CP4 of the Core Strategy similarly seeks to
maximise ‘the use of previously developed land’.

Policy KP1 of the Core Strategy states ‘appropriate regeneration and growth will be
focused in the...seafront to enhance the Seafront’s role as a successful leisure and
tourist attraction and place to live, and make the best use of the River Thames, subject
to the safeguarding of the biodiversity importance of the foreshore.’

Policy CP3 of the Core Strategy states that ‘improvement to transport infrastructure and
services will be sought....by widening travel choice, particularly by car share, rail, bus,
including social transport, taxi, cycling and walking...’

Policy DS5 of the SCAAP states ‘In order to support the vitality and viability of the
SCAAP area the Council will maintain parking capacity within Southend Central Area at
a level that supports vitality and viability and does not undermine the Central Area’s
ability to accommodate visitor trips, whilst enabling the delivery of relevant opportunity
sites.’

Policy DS4 of the SCAAP states development proposals which are within a flood zone
‘will be accompanied by a flood risk assessment...will locate more vulnerable uses in the
areas of the proposal least at risk...will achieve an appropriate degree of safety over the
lifetime of the development...” Policy DM6 of the Development Management Document
similarly requires developments in this location to take account of flood risk.

The site has previously been granted planning permission to be redeveloped to provide
a mixed development including residential units, hotel accommodation and commercial
uses. However this permission has now lapsed. More recently temporary planning
permission was granted on 6" June 2018 for a period of 5 years to use the site as a car
park. This temporary permission has been implemented and remains in place until 6"
June 2023. The front of the site has already been re-surfaced and laid out for car
parking. The rear of the site is currently being used for coach parking. This application
seeks to resurface and formalise the parking to the rear of the site, with parking provided
for cars and coaches, with some flexibility. As such the principle of using the site for
parking purposes has already been considered acceptable for a temporary period. The
use would provide parking for members of the public and for coaches which would
benefit tourism/day trips and would benefit other uses and businesses in the surrounding
area and the wider community. No objection is therefore raised to the principle of the
temporary use proposed in this respect, subject to a similar condition, restricting the use
for a further 5 years from the date of this permission.



Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/00311/BC3M

7.7 The site is located within Flood Zone 3a (high probability of flooding). The application
has been submitted with a Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy which
comments that the proposed use constitutes a ‘less vulnerable use’ which is an
appropriate use within flood zone 3a. The Flood Risk Assessment also identifies that
the site benefits from flood defences. The Flood Risk Assessment concludes that the
development does not increase flood risk either on site or elsewhere and that the
proposal will remain safe for the lifetime of the development. Given the findings of this
report and given the nature and temporary use of the proposed development no
objection is raised to the principle of the development on this basis, Flood risk
considerations are considered in greater detail below. It is also noted that no objection
was previously raised on this basis under reference 18/00634/BC3M.

7.8 This proposal is considered in more detail in the context of the policies relating to design
and impact on the adjoining Heritage Assets below. However, no objection is raised on
this basis in principle.

7.9 There is therefore no objection to the principle of using the site as a surface car park for
a temporary period of 5 years, subject to the scheme satisfying each of the
considerations detailed below.

Design and Impact on the Character of the Area and Adjoining Heritage Assets

7.10 Section 72(1) of the Planning and Listed Building and Conservation Areas Act 1990
states that special attention should be paid to the desirability of preserving or enhancing
the character or appearance of the Conservation Area and Section 66(1) of the same
Act states for development which affects a Listed Building or its setting that special
regard shall be had to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any
feature of special architectural interest that it possesses.

7.11 1t should be noted that good design is a fundamental requirement of new development
to achieve high quality environments. Its importance is reflected in the National Planning
Policy Framework, in Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy and in Policy DM1 of
the Development Management Document. The Design and Townscape Guide also
states that “the Borough Council is committed to good design and will seek to create
attractive, high-quality living environments.”

7.12 Paragraph 124 of the NPPF states ‘The creation of high quality buildings and places is
fundamental to what the planning and development process should achieve. Good
design is a key aspect of sustainable development, creates better places in which to live
and work and helps make development acceptable to communities.’

7.13 Policy DM1 of the Development Management Document states that all development
should “add to the overall quality of the area and respect the character of the site, its
local context and surroundings in terms of its architectural approach, height, size, scale,
form, massing, density, layout, proportions, materials, townscape and/or landscape
setting, use, and detailed design features”.

7.14 Paragraph 193 of the NPPF states ‘When considering the impact of a proposed
development on the significance of a designated heritage asset, great weight should be
given to the asset’s conservation (and the more important the asset, the greater the
weight should be).’

10



7.15

7.16

7.17

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/00311/BC3M

Paragraph 195 of the NPPF states ‘Where a proposed development will lead to
substantial harm to (or total loss of significance of) a designated heritage asset, local
planning authorities should refuse consent, unless it can be demonstrated that the
substantial harm or total loss if necessary to achieve substantial public benefits that
outweigh that harm or loss...’

Paragraph 196 of the NPPF states ‘Where a development proposal will lead to less than
substantial harm to the significance or a designated asset, this harm should be weighed
against the public benefits of the proposal including, where appropriate, securing its
optimum viable use.’

Policy DM5 of the Development Management Document states ‘Development proposals
that result in the total loss of or substantial harm to the significance of a designated
heritage asset, including listed buildings and buildings within conservation areas, will be
resisted, unless there is clear and convincing justification that outweighs the harm or
loss. Development proposals that are demonstrated to result in less than substantial
harm to a designated heritage asset will be weighed against the impact on the
significance of the asset and the public benefits of the proposal, and will be resisted
where there is no clear and convincing justification for this.

Policy DS5 of the SCAAP states ‘In order to support the vitality and viability of the
SCAAP area the Council will ensure new and existing car parks add to the overall
aesthetic quality of an area through such measures as landscaping, green walls, public
art, pedestrian walkways and pedestrian permeability, as well incorporating layouts to
reduce visual impact and effect on key views within and to Southend Central Area.’

The proposed car park is of a relatively utilitarian design, however, the existing site has
already been granted temporary planning permission to be used as a car park. The
scheme does include some small areas of landscaping which is positive. It is noted that
there have already been improvements to the appearance of the site since the granting
of temporary planning permission in 2018 with, for example the introduction of gabion
walls and trees to the front of the site, in accordance with Policy DS5 of the SCAAP. As
such, on balance, the proposal is considered acceptable and policy compliant in the
above regards.

The site is located adjacent to a Conservation Area; the Eastern Esplanade
Conservation Area which constitutes numbers 40-57 Eastern Esplanade; a row of mid-
19" Century terraced cottages. No’'s 40-45 constitute Grade Il Listed Buildings and
numbers 46-57 constitute locally listed buildings. Given that temporary planning
permission has already been granted for the use of the site as a car park, given that
landscaping improvements have already occurred and that some additional landscaped
areas are proposed as part of this application, it is considered that the proposed
development would preserve the character and appearance of the adjoining heritage
assets, in accordance with National and Local Planning Policies.

It is considered that the development would be of an acceptable overall design that
would not result in any material harm to the visual amenity of the area. The
development would preserve the character and appearance of the adjoining
Conservation Area and would not result in any material harm to the setting of the nearby
Listed Buildings. The proposal is therefore acceptable and policy compliant in this
respect.

11



7.22

7.23

7.24

7.25

7.26

Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/00311/BC3M

Impact on Residential Amenity

Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management Document and CP4 of the
Core Strategy refer to the impact of development on surrounding occupiers. High quality
development, by definition, should provide a positive living environment for its occupiers
whilst not having an adverse impact on the amenity of neighbours. Protection and
enhancement of amenity is essential to maintaining people's quality of life and
ensuring the successful integration of proposed development into existing
neighbourhoods.

Policy DM14 of the Development Management Document states that ‘Development on
or near land that is known to be contaminated or which may be affected by
contamination will only be permitted where an appropriate contaminated land
assessment has been carried out...where contamination is found which would pose an
unacceptable risk to people’s health, the natural environment or water quality, the
Council will impose a condition, if appropriate, to ensure the applicant undertake
remedial measures to ensure that the site is suitable for the proposed use and that the
development can safely proceed. Remediation works will be carried out before the
commencement of any new development’.

Given the nature of the proposed development, the proposal would not result in any
material harm to the living conditions of the adjoining residents in terms of overlooking,
loss of privacy, dominance, an overbearing impact, loss of light and outlook,
overshadowing or a material sense of enclosure.

Given the nature of the proposal, the development has the potential to result in noise
and disturbance to the adjoining residents. In this respect, the application has been
submitted with a noise impact assessment which concludes ‘calculations indicate that
the ambient sound level including the operation of the car park is likely to remain
unchanged during the daytime hours suggesting no observed effect at the nearest noise
sensitive receptors. As such, the site is therefore considered to be suitable for the
proposed use with regard to noise and no additional mitigation measures are
recommended’.

In this respect, it is noted that Burnaby Road to the rear of the site has a more
residential nature and is quieter than Eastern Esplanade to the front of the site.
However, it is proposed, as existing, that vehicles will access and egress the site from
Eastern Esplanade. This is a positive element of the proposal which will significantly
reduce its impact. Eastern Esplanade is already a busy road and as such it is not
considered that the proposed use would result in any material harm to the adjoining
residents fronting Eastern Esplanade in terms of noise and disturbance over and above
the existing situation. The site also adjoins dwellings to the east and west, however, it is
apparent that fencing has been installed to the boundaries of the site which would
provide some sound attenuation. It is also noted that there are some existing parking
courts serving the flats to the immediate east and west of the site which directly adjoin
the application site and that the information submitted with this application indicates that
the gates to the car park will be closed at 10pm (except during main organised events).
However, it is noted that the information submitted by the application indicates that
during the fire work displays last year, the car park was still closed at 10pm. Temporary
planning permission for the use of the site for parking purposes for up to 318 cars and
27 coach parking spaces has already been granted and does not expire until 6" June
2023.

12



7.27

7.28

7.29

7.30

7.31

Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/00311/BC3M

The Environmental Health Team has raised no objection on this basis. The proposal is
considered to be acceptable and policy compliant in regards to potential noise and
disturbance impacts in the round.

In terms of lighting, the application seeks to retain the existing lighting columns and as
such it is considered that the proposal would not result in any material harm to the
adjoining occupiers in terms of light pollution over and above the existing situation. A
condition can be imposed requiring the external lighting to be directed, sited and
screened away from the adjacent properties. Subject to such a condition no objection is
raised on this basis. It is also noted that Environmental Health have raised no objection
on this basis and that temporary planning permission has already been granted to use
this site for parking purposes.

This application has been submitted with an air quality assessment which concludes ‘7t
is considered that the effect of the development on air quality will be insignificant to
minor adverse and therefore the proposal fully accords with the principals of the AQMA.
In conclusion, there would be no materially significant additional air quality impacts to
the vicinity and sensitive receptors arising as a result of the proposal for the car park...’
In this respect, it is noted that the Environmental Health raised no objection on this
basis. No objection is raised to the scheme in this respect. A representation received
has raised concerns that coach engines are left switched on whilst parked which causes
fumes and nuisance. A condition can be imposed on any grant of consent in this
respect.

As such it is considered that the development would not result in any material adverse
harm to the residential amenity of the adjoining residents. The proposal is therefore
policy compliant in this respect.

In terms of land contamination, the application has been submitted with a Geo-
Environmental Investigation Report. This report comments that the site formerly housed
the Southend Gas Works, infrastructure associated with the gas works including gas
holders, tar and liquid tanks and above ground oil storage tanks were previously located
across the site. The report states that no significant sources of on-going contamination
were noted during the site walkover.

The report concludes that elevated levels of high molecular weight organic
contamination were noted in the groundwater and slightly elevated levels of mobile
organics were observed, however, none of the remedial targets were exceeded by the
maximum measured concentrations recorded in the groundwater retrieved from beneath
the site and as such remedial action to afford protection to the Estuary receptor would
not be required. Whilst localised contaminated soils were noted, the concentrations
encountered did not exceed the relevant guidelines based on the proposed use of the
site. Furthermore the site is to be covered with hardstanding thus severing any source
receptor pathways. Therefore any risks to human health through contaminant uptake
are considered to be low. The report recommends that clean top soil and sub soil are
imported into any proposed soft landscaped areas. The report recommends a geotextile
marker layer below any imported materials in this respect. The risk from the very small
guantities of asbestos encountered are considered to be low, especially as the proposal
seeks to cap the entirety of the site with hardstanding. Any services should be protected
if included in the redevelopment of the site. No gas protection measures are necessary
as no new buildings are proposed on the site.

13



7.32

7.33

7.34

7.35

7.36

7.37

7.38

7.39

Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/00311/BC3M

The report submitted therefore concludes that a watching brief be implemented on this
site and should any further contamination be discovered all works should cease and a
suitably qualified person should attend the site to agree a formal remediation strategy.
The report’s final conclusions are that based on the proposed redevelopment of the site
as a car park, provided that the recommended remedial works are implemented that the
site would not be considered to be ‘contaminated land’.

In this respect, Environmental Health has raised no objection to the principle of the
development, recommending a condition in terms of contamination. A condition can be
attached to any grant of consent in this respect. Environmental Health also
recommends a condition restricting the construction times which is considered
reasonable. However, given the nature of the development proposed and the coverage
of these matters under other legislation it is not considered necessary to impose
conditions requiring dust emission details or restricting the burning of waste materials
on the site.

As such, subject to conditions the development is considered acceptable and policy
compliant and no objection is raised on this basis.

Traffic and Transportation Issues

Policy DM15 of the Development Management Document states that ‘Development will
be allowed where there is, or it can be demonstrated that there will be physical and
environmental capacity to accommodate the type and amount of traffic generated in a
safe and sustainable manner...access to the proposed development and any traffic
generated must not unreasonably harm the surroundings...’

Paragraph 109 of the NPPF states ‘Development should only be prevented or refused
on highways grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or
the residual cumulative impacts on the road network would be severe.’

This planning application has been submitted with a Transport Assessment which
concludes that the results of the trip generation modelling demonstrates that the
proposed development trips can be accommodated within Eastern Esplanade and will
not have a negative impact on Eastern Esplanade and the impact of the car park will not
be severe — which is the requirement of the NPPF, as outlined above.

No changes are proposed to the access. The existing access and egress are
considered acceptable, providing good visibility in both directions and therefore do not
harm highway safety.

The layout and design of the car park is acceptable. The highways team has
commented that it is not considered that the application will have a detrimental impact
on the highway or the surrounding areas and that the detailed information submitted
with the application is robust.

The development is therefore acceptable and policy compliant in this regard and no
objection is therefore raised on this basis.

14



7.40

7.41

7.42

7.43

7.44

7.45

7.46

Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/00311/BC3M

Flood Risk and Drainage

Policy KP1 of Core Strategy states that all development proposals within flood risk
zones “shall be accompanied by a detailed flood risk assessment appropriate to the
scale and the nature of the development and the risk”. It is also noted that “development
will only be permitted where that assessment clearly demonstrates that it is
appropriate in terms of its type, siting and the mitigation measures proposed,
using appropriate and sustainable flood risk management options.”

Policy DS4 of the SCAAP requires development proposals located in flood zones to be
‘accompanied by a flood risk assessment...locate more vulnerable uses in the areas of
the proposal at least risk...achieve an appropriate degree of safety over the lifetime of
the development...’

Paragraph 155 of the NPPF states ‘lnappropriate development in areas at risk of
flooding should be avoided by directing development away from areas at highest risk
(whether existing or future). Where development is necessary in such areas, the
development should be safe for its lifetime without increasing flood risk elsewhere.’

Paragraph 158 of the NPPF states ‘The aim of the sequential test is to steer new
development to areas with the lowest risk of flooding. Development should not be
allocated or permitted if there are reasonably available sites appropriate for the
proposed development in areas with a lower risk of flooding.’

Paragraph 159 of the NPPF states If it is not possible for development to be located in
zones with a lower risk of flooding (taking into account wider sustainable development
objectives), he exception test may have to be applied. The need for the exception test
will depend on the potential vulnerability of the site and of the development proposed, in
line with the Flood Risk Vulnerability Classification set out in national planning
guidance.’

The Guidance contained within the Planning Practice Guide states ‘The Sequential Test
does not need to be applied for...applications for minor development or change of use
(except for a change of use to a caravan, camping or chalet site, or to a mobile home or
park home site)

The site is located within Flood Zone 3a; the high probability flood zone, however, the
proposed use is considered to constitute a less vulnerable use. In this respect, the
Environment Agency’s Flood Risk Vulnerability Classification table identifies less
vulnerable development as appropriate within flood zone 3a. The Environment Agency
previously raised no objection to a similar proposal under reference 18/00634/BC3M on
flood risk grounds and have not raised an objection to this proposal on flood risk
grounds. The Environment Agency state they have no objection on flood risk grounds
provided the local planning authority is satisfied that the sequential test is passed and
the development would be safe for its lifetime. In this respect, the Environment Agency
comment that long-term and residential car parking is unlikely to be acceptable in areas
that regularly flood due to the risk of car owners being away from the area and being
unable to move their cars when a flood occurs. The Environment Agency also
commented that the site owner should be signed up to the public flood warning service
and that signage should be installed and evacuation procedures should be in place.

15



7.47

7.48

7.49

7.50

7.51

7.52

Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/00311/BC3M

The application has been submitted with a Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) which
concludes that the sequential test does not need to be applied for changes of use and
notes that whilst the site is located within Flood Zone 3a, the existing flood defences
currently protect the area providing a standard of protection between 1 in 99 and 1 in
1000 years and the risk of flooding from other sources is low. The FRA also concludes
that the development would not increase flood risk on the site or elsewhere and the site
will remain safe for the lifetime of the development.

The FRA submitted also makes a commitment to sign up to the Environment Agency’s
Floodline Warning Direct Services, that the applicant will monitor the weather following
advanced warnings from the Environment Agency of a storm approaching and will
manage the operation of the car park such that the public are not put at risk in the event
of the flood defences being breached. It is also noted that there is no proposal for
nearby residents to use this car park with the car park locked from later evening
onwards.

As such, given the findings and commitments within the FRA submitted and given the
Environment Agency comments received, subject to a condition requiring the
development to be undertaken in accordance with the approved FRA no objection is
raised to the development in terms of Flood Risk. It is also noted that there was no
objection raised previously in this respect under reference 18/00634/BC3M.

In terms of surface water management the FRA submitted indicates that the existing
surface water system will continue to serve the application site. The report concludes
that during an extreme rainfall event (in excess of the 1 in 100 year event plus climate
change), the surface water drainage network capacity may become overwhelmed
resulting in surface flooding and overland flows. The FRA therefore states that the
operation and maintenance of the development’s drainage infrastructure needs to be
agreed with the key stakeholders.

The Council’s SuDS Engineers have commented that additional information is required
to satisfy planning requirements. The following information has been identified as being
required; a drainage strategy, greenfield runoff rates, existing runoff rates during storm
events, details of how the drainage satisfies the SuDS techniques in terms of water
quality and attenuation and discharge quantity, clarification of overland flow routes,
connection points and proposed method of flow control, SuDS clarification, a system of
valuation, provision of drainage for large storm events, details of conveyance and
exceedance flow routes, details of SUDS management and evidence of consent from
Southend Council that they will be responsible for private surface water drains.
Following the provision of such information, the SuDS Engineers indicate that planning
conditions could be imposed requiring the applicant to provide evidence of infiltration
testing, a method statement regarding the management of surface water runoff during
the construction phase, evidence of consent from Anglian Water for the proposed
discharge rate and connection location to the public sewer and details of the
management and maintenance for all SuDS and how they will be secured for the
lifetime of the development.

Given that temporary planning permission has already been granted to use the site as
car park (reference 18/00634/BC3M), in this instance, it is considered that conditions
can be imposed on any grant of consent requiring the above details to be submitted to
and approved by the Local Planning Authority. Subject to such a condition the
development is considered acceptable and policy compliant in this respect.

16



7.53

7.54

8.1

9.1

01

02

03

Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/00311/BC3M

The Environment Agency has raised no objection to the proposal. Given the nature of
the proposal which includes limited alterations to the site and given the temporary
nature of the proposal no objection is raised to the scheme on flooding or drainage
grounds, subject to conditions.

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)

As the proposed development equates to less than 100sgm of new floorspace, and
does not involve the creation of a new dwelling (Class C3), the development benefits
from a Minor Development Exemption under the Community Infrastructure Levy
Regulations 2010 (as amended) and as such no charge is payable.

Conclusion

Having regard to all material considerations it is considered that, subject to compliance
with the attached conditions, the proposed development would be acceptable and
compliant with the objectives of the relevant local development plan policies and
guidance as well as those contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.
The site already benefits from temporary planning permission to be used as a car park
until 6™ June 2023. There is no objection to the principle of the development, the design
or impact on the character and appearance of the site or the wider surrounding area.
The development would preserve the character and appearance of the nearby
Conservation Area and would not materially harm the setting of the nearby listed
buildings. The proposed would not materially harm residential amenity, is acceptable
from a highways and transportation perspective and subject to conditions is acceptable
in flood terms. This application is therefore recommended for approval, subject to
conditions.

Recommendation

Members are recommended to GRANT TEMPORARY PLANNING PERMISSION
subject to the following conditions:

The development hereby permitted shall begin no later than three years from the
date of this decision.

Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990.

The permission hereby approved is for a temporary period of 5 years from the
date of the permission only. After 5 years from the date of the granting of this
permission, the use hereby approved shall cease.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in accordance with the National Planning
Policy Framework (2019) and Policies KP1 and KP2 of the Core Strategy (2007).

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans: MW192020 (Location Plan), MW,1920202 (Block Plan),
MW,192020 Resurfacing Plan.

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the
provisions of the Development Plan.

17



04

05

06

07

Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/00311/BC3M

Before any vehicle parking permitted within the scope of this approval takes
place, a strategy for implementation of the hardsurfacing works including
timescales, phasing, any mitigation necessary and implementation of the
recommendations set out in the strategy shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the local planning authority. The strategy shall include, but not be
limited to the following matters:

- Hard and soft landscaping

- Drainage infrastructure

- Contamination/remediation

- Car park management arrangements

The development shall be undertaken in accordance with the approved strategy
in perpetuity.

Reason: To safeguard the character and appearance of the surrounding area and
the amenities of neighbouring occupiers, to ensure satisfactory drainage of the
site, in accordance with National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Policies DM1,
DM3, DM5 and DM14 of the Development Management Document (2015) and
Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007).

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the approved Flood Risk Assessment undertaken by BdR,
reference 18-0073 dated 28" February 2018, including the flood risk management
recommendations on page 12 unless otherwise previously agreed in writing by
the local planning authority.

Reason: To ensure the development is safe and to ensure compliance with the
National Planning Policy Framework (2019) and Core Strategy (2007) Policies KP1
and KP2.

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the approved Geo-environmental Investigations undertaken by
Ground and Environmental Services Limited, reference 11691-1 dated January
2018, including the recommendations outlined on pages 39-41 unless otherwise
previously agreed in writing by the local planning authority.

Reason - To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the
land and neighbouring land are minimised, to ensure that the development can be
carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other
offsite receptors, to ensure compliance with the National Planning Policy
Framework (2019), Core Strategy (2007) Policies KP2 and CP4, Development
Management Document (2015) Policies DM1, DM3 and DM14 and the advice
contained within the Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

Prior to the installation of any geotextile membrane on the site, details of the
material to be used, including full manufacturer’s specifications shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The
development shall be undertaken in accordance with the approved details only
and thereafter permanently retained as such in perpetuity.

18



08

09

10

11

Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/00311/BC3M

Reason - To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the
land and neighbouring land are minimised, to ensure that the development can be
carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other
offsite receptors, to ensure compliance with the National Planning Policy
Framework (2019), Core Strategy (2007) Policies KP2 and CP4, Development
Management Document (2015) Policies DM1, DM3 and DM14 and the advice
contained within the Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

Any external lighting installed shall be directed, sited and screened away from the
adjoining and nearby residential properties and retained as such in perpetuity.

Reason: In the interests of the residential amenity of the adjoining residents and
to ensure that the development complies with the National Planning Policy
Framework (2019), Core Strategy (2007) Policies KP2 and CP4, Development
Management Document (2015) Policies DM1 and DM3 and the advice contained
within the Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

The development hereby approved shall only be undertaken between 8am and
6pm Monday to Friday and 8am to 1lpm Saturdays and at no other time
whatsoever.

Reason: In the interests of the residential amenity of the adjoining residents and
to ensure that the development complies with the National Planning Policy
Framework (2019), Core Strategy (2007) Policies KP2 and CP4, Development
Management Document (2015) Policies DM1 and DM3 and the advice contained
within the Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

No closed circuit television (CCTV) shall be installed until full details of the CCTV
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.
The CCTV shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: In the interests of the visual amenity of the surrounding area and to
ensure that the development complies with the National Planning Policy
Framework (2019), Core Strategy (2007) Policies KP2 and CP4, Development
Management Document (2015) Policies DM1 and DM3 and the advice within the
Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

Rear access to Burnaby Road shall only be use in an emergency and at no other
times whatsoever.

Reason: In the interests of the residential amenity of the adjoining residents and
to ensure that the development complies with the National Planning Policy
Framework (2019), Core Strategy (2007) Policies KP2 and CP4, within the Design
and Townscape Guide (2009).

No coaches shall be parked within the application site with their engines left
running.

Reason: In the interests of the residential amenity of the adjoining residents and
to ensure that the development complies with the National Planning Policy
Framework (2019), Core Strategy (2007) Policies KP2 and CP4, within the Design
and Townscape Guide (2009).

19



01

02

03

04

Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/00311/BC3M

Informatives:

You are advised that as the proposed extension(s) to your property equates to
less than 100sgm of new floorspace the development benefits from a Minor
Development Exemption under the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations
2010 (as amended) and as such no charge is payable. See
www.southend.gov.uk/cil for further details about CIL.

You should be aware that in cases where damage occurs during construction
works to the highway in implementing this permission that Council may seek to
recover the cost of repairing public highways and footpaths from any party
responsible for damaging them. This includes damage carried out when
implementing a planning permission or other works to buildings or land. Please
take care when carrying out works on or near the public highways and footpaths
in the borough.

The applicant is reminded that this permission does not bestow compliance with
other regulatory frameworks. In particular your attention is drawn to the statutory
nuisance provisions within the Environmental Protection Act 1990 (as amended)
and also to the relevant sections of the Control of Pollution Act 1974. The
provisions apply to the construction phase and not solely to the operation of the
completed development. Contact 01702 215005 for more information.

If it is predicted that the construction works are likely to cause a nuisance the
applicant should apply for a prior consent application under section 61 of the
Control of Pollution Act 1974. A consent enables the applicant to conduct the
works without the worry of enforcement provided they comply with it. The
applicant will have to submit details of any noisy works including type of plant
and machinery to be used, proposed daily start and finish times, consultation
with nearby residents and businesses and duration and time scales of the works.
The applicant should contact the Regulatory Services Team at Southend-on-Sea
Borough Council for details.

20



AL, |
huj%j\\

T

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey
mapping with the permission of The
Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery
Office ® Crown copyright and datobase
rights 2013. Unouthoerised reproduction
infringes Crown copyright and may lead to
prosecutions or civil proceedings.
Southend—on—Sea Borough Council Licence
number 100019680

"
|
| = i

Revisions

Rev

Details Date

Southend-on-Sea
Borough Council

Neighbourhoods &
Environments

PO Box 5560, Civic Centre
Victoria Avenue, Southend on Sea,
SS2 6ZQ

| Quality Project No. :

Project Title

Car Park
Improvements
Drawing Title
Gasworks
Designed by Scales @ A2
{Drawn Date
19/02/2020 1:1250
Checked |Date
/
Approved|Date Issued |[Date
//
Drawing Status
Preliminary X Working
Tender As Constructed

Drawing Number

MW192020

QRM A2 Titlahnv aditad kv PWWM Raw A2.112N172




This page is intentionally left blank



LIUCKLTGY o 1 NY PEHMT AYYERIL OV JdD

089610001 Jequnu

020261 ‘M

Jdaquunn Buimpuq

pajoniysuo) sy

Japua]

Bujiom

X

Kipuiwii|aig

eouesr] |19uno) ybnosog pes—uo—pusyjnos
‘abujpeesosd | Jo suopnoescud

0} poej Aow puo jybuddos umosy sebunyul
uoonposdes pesuoyinoun ‘€10z SWbY
eepqpipp pup jybuddos umoina eal0
Aisuopnyg s Misefppy JeH jo Jejjonuo)

eyl jo uossjused ey} yum buiddow
Aemng @oubuplQ 8y} wol) peonpoiday

snipys buimouq

//

2)bd| penss| 81b( [paroiddy

/o /

910q| paxoay)

00G:1 0¢0¢/¢0/61

21bQ uMDJI(]

¢Y _© S®|bdg Aq paubisaq
SHIOMSEC)
o)L Bumpig
sjuawanoidul)
Yled Jed
o)L j08foid|f——

1 'oN 1oeloig Aypnp

0Z9 2SS
‘eag U0 puayjnosg ‘@nusAy BLIOJOIA
anua JIAID ‘096G xog Od

SJUSLWIUOIIAUT
© spooytnoqybiaN

louno) ybnoliog
Bag-uo-puayjnos

S e R i (T i

SUOISIASY




This page is intentionally left blank



G¢

Gas Works Car Park

by Charlotte White



9¢



LC



8¢



6¢



o€



T€



ce



€e



1%



GE



This page is intentionally left blank



Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/00328/BC3M

Reference:

20/00328/BC3M

Application Type:

Borough Council Regulation 3-Major

Thorpe 5

Ward:

Proposal: Resurface existing car park and layout additional coach and
car parking

Address: Southchurch Park East, Lifstan Way, Southend-on-Sea,
Essex

Applicant: Southend On Sea Borough Council

Agent: Sharon Harrington of Southend Borough Council

Consultation Expiry:

24th March 2020

Expiry Date:

251 May 2020

Case Officer:

Charlotte White

Plan Nos:

MWwW4328 (Block Plan dated 01/03/2020), MW4328 (Site
Location Plan dated 01/03/2020), Lifstan Way Current
Layout Plan

Recommendation:

GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION, subject to conditions

I

Sputhend Manor Football Club

Bowling Greery

100 Flsy Area

= =

A2

&
&
i ]
=]
slameie S_d_’/_\\_

FB Links &

Sparts Ground

ol !

37




11

1.2

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

4.1

Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/00311/BC3M

Site and Surroundings

The site is located to the east of Lifstan Way. It is irregular in shape and includes an
existing hardsurfaced car park area, a gravel, informal parking area, a grassed area and
the existing separate in and out access and egress to the site. There are residential
dwellings to the west and north of the site. To the east of the site is an open space and
to the south of the site is a pond.

Within the Development Management Documents Proposal’s Map, the site is allocated
as Protected Green Space. The site is mainly located within Flood Zone 3, with a small
area to the north-west of the site within flood zone 2.

The Proposal

Planning permission is sought to resurface the existing informal, gravel parking area
and layout additional flexible coach and car parking spaces. From the information
provided it is evident that there are 67 parking spaces on site currently, including 5
disabled spaces. This proposal will increase this by an additional 157 spaces, providing
a total of 224 parking spaces on the site, which includes an additional 5 disabled
spaces. The proposal will also provide 11 coach parking spaces. The coach parking
spaces constitute dual spaces, overlapping some of the car parking spaces, allowing
the parking area to be used in a flexible way. The information submitted within the
Design and Access Statement states that during times of coach use, the parking bays
will be suspended directly behind the coaches to allow for vehicles to manoeuvre
effectively.

The Design and Access Statement submitted confirms that the car park will be
accessed via the existing entrance and exit from Lifstan Way. It is indicated that the car
park will be resurfaced with a black asphalt finish, will provide a formal layout for car
and coach parking and will provide ANPR (Automatic Number Plate Recognition)
security systems. It is stated that the gates will be closed overnight, except on days of
main organised events. The information in the design and access statement indicates
that the existing lighting columns will be retained which have adjustable control of lux
(i.e. luminance) levels and are on a timer. In terms of landscaping it is stated that the
existing landscaping will be retained within the site, with further planting undertaken
where appropriate. It is stated that the drainage strategy proposes to reuse the existing
site drainage and that the new car park surface will be laid to a slight fall to shed water
to the existing slot drains.

The application has been submitted with a Design and Access Statement.
Relevant Planning History

None

Representation Summary

Public Consultation

77 neighbouring properties were consulted, a site notice displayed and the application
was advertised in the press.

38



Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/00311/BC3M

23 letters of representation have been received which make the following summarised
comments:

Residential Amenity concerns.

Concerns relating to the loss of open space and dog walking space and provision
of car and coach parking in this location.

Concerns relating to having to pay to park and the cost of parking and it resulting
in additional parking in surrounding streets.

Highway safety concerns.

Insufficient space for coaches to manoeuvre

Environmental and flooding concerns. Regular flooding in area and concerns
relating to using tarmac in a flood plain.

Has been attended by school and local residents for years — planting wild flowers
and trees.

Loss of view.

Suggest trees and high scrub planted around southern edge of proposed coach
parking to provide screening.

Tourists being put above residents.

Queries regarding whether any green space or trees will be lost and the total
number of spaces proposed, the opening times, gates and security.

Disturb wildlife and detrimental to flora, fauna and natural habitat including great
crested newts. Lack of protected species surveys.

Will impact quiet pursuits.

Health and Safety concerns and safety concerns for children using the park.

No risk assessment.

Air Quality concerns

No tree report submitted. Unclear if trees to be removed.

Drainage concerns.

Gas works car park already has enough parking.

Should be encouraging walking not driving.

Car park is used for school pick-up and drop-off therefore concerns to making the
car park pay and display and that this will cause on-street parking and
subsequent highway safety concerns.

Suggestions relating to pay and display at certain times/or short term free for
school drop off/pick up purposes.

Tarmacking over a popular public green space and park.

Pay and display will also deter dog walkers.

Pollution and noise

Regularly witness groups of scooters congregating in area at anti-socail hours,
when gates are locked, causing noise and disturbance. To reduce risk of this,
suggest facility is secured accordingly and lighting and CCTV used to reduce
risk.

Concerns relating to traveller incursions, fly tipping and anti-social behaviour.
Cost of upgrading the surface and of CCTV is unwarranted.

Concerns that the proposal is linked to the Seaway proposals and comments that
ther car park is significnalty removed from the Town Centre/Seafront, etc.
Conservation Area concerns (Officer comment: the site is not located within a
Conservation Area).

Contrary to the zero carbon commitment.

Representations have been received stating that there is a petition objecting to

39



4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

5.1

5.2

5.3

Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/00311/BC3M

this proposal. But the petition has not been submitted.

The comments made have been considered in the determination of the application. The
matters are not found to represent a reasonable basis to refuse planning permission in
the circumstances of this case.

Sport England
The proposed development does not fall within our statutory or non-statutory remit.

Highways Team
It is not considered that the application will have a detrimental impact upon the public
highway in the surrounding areas. Opportunities to enhance the green space areas with
additional landscape planting will be undertaken. The north part of the current car park
area is used for staff parking for Greenways School and there are no plans to change
this arrangement.

Parks

Landscape plan for the planting areas to remain to be agreed prior to construction.
There should be no negative impact to the surrounding environment, including
Southchurch Park and Southchurch Park East. Tree protection measures in accordance
with BS5837 shall be implemented to protect the trees surrounding the site.

Council’s SuDS Engineers
Requests additional information. (Officer comment: A condition is recommended in this
respect).

Environmental Health
No objection subject to conditions relating to construction and external illumination.

Environment Agency

No objection subject to a condition requiring surface water draining from areas of
hardstanding passing through an oil separator or a series of oil separators prior to being
discharged into any watercourse, soakaway or surface water sewer.

Fire Authority
The arrangements should be in accordance with the details contained in the Approved
Document to Building Regulation B5.

Planning Policy Summary

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2019)

Core Strategy (2007): Policies KP1 (Spatial Strategy), KP2 (Development Principles),
KP3 (Implementation and Resources), CP3 (Transport and Accessibility), CP4 (The
Environment and Urban Renaissance), CP6 (Community Infrastructure) and CP7
(Sport, Recreation and Green Space).

Development Management Document (2015): Policies DM1 (Design Quality), DM2 (Low

Carbon and Efficient Use of Resources), DM3 (Efficient and Effective Use of Land),
DM14 (Environmental Protection) and DM15 (Sustainable Transport Management)

40



5.4

5.5

6.1

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/00311/BC3M

Design & Townscape Guide (2009)
CIL Charging Schedule (2015)
Planning Considerations

The main considerations in relation to this application are the principle of the
development, design and impact on the character and appearance of the area, traffic
and transportation matters, impact on residential amenity and ecology, the environment,
flood risk and drainage considerations and CIL (Community Infrastructure Levy).

Appraisal
Principle of Development

Paragraph 117 of the NPPF states: Planning policies and decisions should promote an
effective use of land in meeting the need for homes and other uses, whilst safeguarding
and improving the environment and ensuring safe and healthy living conditions.
Strategic policies should set out a clear strategy for accommodating objectively
assessed needs, in a way that makes as much use as possible of previously-developed
or ‘brownfield” land. Policy KP2 of the Core Strategy requires ‘all new
development...make the best use of previously developed land, ensuring that sites and
buildings are put to best use.” Policy CP4 of the Core Strategy similarly seeks to
maximise ‘the use of previously developed land’.

Policy KP1 of the Core Strategy states ‘appropriate regeneration and growth will be
focused in the...seafront to enhance the Seafront’s role as a successful leisure and
tourist attraction and place to live, and make the best use of the River Thames, subject
to the safeguarding of the biodiversity importance of the foreshore.’

Policy CP3 of the Core Strategy states that ‘improvement to transport infrastructure and
services will be sought....by widening travel choice, particularly by car share, rail, bus,
including social transport, taxi, cycling and walking...’

Paragraph 97 of the NPPF states °‘Existing open space, sports and recreational
buildings and land, including playing fields, shall not be built on unless:

a) an assessment has been undertaken which has clearly shown the open space,
buildings or land to be surplus to requirements; or

b) the loss resulting from the proposed development would be replaced by equivalent or
better provision in terms of quantity and quality in a suitable location; or

c) the development is for alternative sports and recreation provision, the benefits of
which clearly outweigh the loss of the current or former use.’

Policy KP2 of the Core Strategy states that ‘All new development, including transport
infrastructure, should contribute to economic, social, physical and environmental
regeneration in a suitable way...this must be achieved in ways which...respect,
conserve and enhance and where necessary adequately mitigate effects on the natural
and historic environment, including the Borough’s biodiversity and green space
resources, ensure that European and international sites for nature conservation are not
adversely affected and contribute positively towards the ‘Green Grid’ in Southend.’

41



7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

7.10

Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/00311/BC3M

Policy CP7 of the Core Strategy states ‘The Borough Council will bring forward
proposals that contribute to sports, recreation and green space facilities within the
Borough for the benefit of local residents and visitors.” The policy goes on to states ‘All
existing and proposed sport, recreation and green space facilities (including the
Southend foreshore and small areas of important local amenity, community resources
or biodiversity value) will be safeguarded from loss or displacement to other uses,
except where is can clearly be demonstrated that alternative facilities of a higher
standard are being provided in at least an equally convenient and accessible location to
serve the same local community, and there would be no loss of amenity or
environmental quality to that community.’

The site is already being used for parking purposes, with a type 1/gravel finish and
informal parking, with no spaces marked out. It was apparent from the site visit and from
aerial photos that this site has been used for parking purposes for some time. In fact,
the historical mapping from 1939 labels this general area as “car park” as shown below.

As such, whilst the site is allocated as protected green space the development which
would not extend into the surrounding fields and which would formalise the existing
gravel parking area would not result in any material loss of open space. It is also noted
that the highways team have commented that opportunities to enhance the green space
areas with additional landscape planting will be undertaken as part of the proposal. As
such, given the location and extent of the proposal, the development is considered
acceptable and policy compliant in principle including policies CP7.

The use would provide parking for members of the public and for coaches which would
benefit tourism/day trips and would benefit other uses and businesses in the
surrounding area and the wider community. No objection is therefore raised to the
principle of the development in this respect.

The site is located within Flood Zone 3a (high probability of flooding). Whilst the
application has not been submitted with a Flood Risk Assessment or Drainage Strategy,
the proposed use of the site for car parking is considered to constitute a ‘less vulnerable
use’ which is an appropriate use within flood zone 3a. Flood risk is considered in more
detail below but given the nature of the use, no objection is raised to the principle of the
development of this basis.

42



7.11

7.12

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

7.17

7.18

Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/00311/BC3M

There is therefore no objection to the principle of the development.
Design and Impact on the Character of the Area

It should be noted that good design is a fundamental requirement of new development
to achieve high quality environments. Its importance is reflected in the National Planning
Policy Framework, in Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy and in Policy DM1 of
the Development Management Document. The Design and Townscape Guide also
states that “the Borough Council is committed to good design and will seek to create
attractive, high-quality living environments.”

Paragraph 124 of the NPPF states ‘The creation of high quality buildings and places is
fundamental to what the planning and development process should achieve. Good
design is a key aspect of sustainable development, creates better places in which to live
and work and helps make development acceptable to communities.’

Policy DM1 of the Development Management Document states that all development
should “add to the overall quality of the area and respect the character of the site, its
local context and surroundings in terms of its architectural approach, height, size, scale,
form, massing, density, layout, proportions, materials, townscape and/or landscape
setting, use, and detailed design features”.

The proposed car park is of a relatively utilitarian in design, however given that the
existing area is already used as an informal car park with a gravel-type finish and given
that it will be seen in the context of the existing tarmac car park at the site, on balance, it
is considered that the development is of an acceptable overall design. The highways
department has confirmed its commitment to providing landscaping improvements
which is positive and can be secured via planning conditions.

The proposal is acceptable and policy compliant in these regards.
Impact on Residential Amenity

Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management Document and CP4 of the
Core Strategy refer to the impact of development on surrounding occupiers. High quality
development, by definition, should provide a positive living environment for its occupiers
whilst not having an adverse impact on the amenity of neighbours. Protection and
enhancement of amenity is essential to maintaining people's quality of life and
ensuring the successful integration of proposed development into existing
neighbourhoods.

Policy DM14 of the Development Management Document states that ‘Development on
or near land that is known to be contaminated or which may be affected by
contamination will only be permitted where an appropriate contaminated land
assessment has been carried out...where contamination is found which would pose an
unacceptable risk to people’s health, the natural environment or water quality, the
Council will impose a condition, if appropriate, to ensure the applicant undertake
remedial measures to ensure that the site is suitable for the proposed use and that the
development can safely proceed. Remediation works will be carried out before the
commencement of any new development’.

43



7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

7.23

7.24

7.25

Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/00311/BC3M

Given the nature of the proposed development, the proposal would not result in any
material harm to the living conditions of the adjoining residents in terms of overlooking,
loss of privacy, dominance, an overbearing impact, loss of light and outlook,
overshadowing or a material sense of enclosure.

Given the nature of the proposal, the development has the potential to result in noise
and disturbance to the adjoining residents. However, given that the site is already used
for parking, in a more informal manner, and given that the coach parking is positioned
away from the nearest dwellings (approximately 50m from the rear boundaries and
some 85m from the rear elevation of the nearest adjoining dwellings), on balance it is
considered that the development would not result in material noise and disturbance over
and above the existing situation. It is also noted that the Environmental Health Team
has raised no objection in this regard and that the information submitted indicates that
the gates to the car park will be closed overnight. As such the development is
considered acceptable in this instance.

In terms of lighting, the application seeks to retain the existing lighting columns and as
such it is considered that the proposal would not result in any materially different impact
to the adjoining occupiers in terms of light pollution over and above the existing
situation. Environmental Health has recommended a planning condition is imposed
requiring full details of the lighting. Subject to such a condition no objection is raised on
this basis.

In terms of air quality, given that the site is already used for parking purposes and this
development would provide a more formal parking layout, it is considered that the
development would not result in any material harm to air quality over and above the
existing situation.

As such it is considered that the development would not result in any material harm to
the residential amenity of the adjoining residents. The proposal is therefore policy
compliant in this respect.

Ecology

Paragraph 170 of the NPPF states that ‘Planning policies and decisions should
contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment by...protecting and
enhancing valued landscapes, sites of biodiversity or geological vale and soils (in a
manner commensurate with their statutory status or identified quality in the development

plan).

Paragraph 175 of the NPPF states ‘When determining planning applications, local
planning authorities should apply the following principles:

a) if significant harm to biodiversity resulting from a development cannot be avoided
(through location on an alternative site with less harmful impacts), adequately mitigated,
or, as a last resort, compensated for, then planning permission should be refused;

b) development on land within or outside a Site of Special Scientific Interest, and which

is likely to have an adverse effect on it (either individually or in combination with other
development), should not normally be permitted.

44



7.26

7.27

7.28

7.29

7.30

7.31

7.32

Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/00311/BC3M

The only exception is where the benefits of the development in the location proposed
clearly outweigh both its likely impact on the features of the site that make it of special
scientific interest, and any broader impacts on the national network of Sites of Special
Scientific Interest.’

Whilst the site is located relatively close to a Local Wildlife Site, RAMSAR and SSSI,
given the nature of the proposal and its existing use as a car park, it is considered that
the development would not result in any material harm to ecology or biodiversity. The
application is acceptable and policy compliant in this respect.

Traffic and Transportation Issues

Policy DM15 of the Development Management Document states that ‘Development will
be allowed where there is, or it can be demonstrated that there will be physical and
environmental capacity to accommodate the type and amount of traffic generated in a
safe and sustainable manner...access to the proposed development and any traffic
generated must not unreasonably harm the surroundings...’

No changes are proposed to the existing access and egress to the site. The existing
access and egress is considered acceptable and it is noted that this proposal seeks to
formalise the existing parking on the site. The parking arrangements allow for the
flexible use of this space and are of an appropriate and acceptable layout. As such it is
considered that the development would not result in any material harm to highway
safety. It is also noted that the Highways Team have not raised an objection to the
proposal, commenting that the application will not have a detrimental impact upon the
public highway in the surrounding area.

It is noted that a number of neighbour concerns have been raised regarding the impact
of the proposal on the existing car park that is used by a local school. However, it is
noted that the highways team, in their consultation response has confirmed that the
current car park area for staff parking for Greenways School is not sought to be altered.

The development is therefore acceptable and policy compliant in this regard and no
objection is therefore raised on this basis.

Flood Risk and Drainage

Policy KP1 of Core Strategy states that all development proposals within flood risk
zones “shall be accompanied by a detailed flood risk assessment appropriate to the
scale and the nature of the development and the risk”. It is also noted that “development
will only be permitted where that assessment clearly demonstrates that it is
appropriate in terms of its type, siting and the mitigation measures proposed,
using appropriate and sustainable flood risk management options.”

Paragraph 155 of the NPPF states ‘lnappropriate development in areas at risk of
flooding should be avoided by directing development away from areas at highest risk
(whether existing or future). Where development is necessary in such areas, the
development should be safe for its lifetime without increasing flood risk elsewhere.’

45



7.33

7.34

7.35

7.36

7.37

7.38

7.39

Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/00311/BC3M

Paragraph 158 of the NPPF states ‘The aim of the sequential test is to steer new
development to areas with the lowest risk of flooding. Development should not be
allocated or permitted if there are reasonably available sites appropriate for the
proposed development in areas with a lower risk of flooding.’

Paragraph 159 of the NPPF states If it is not possible for development to be located in
zones with a lower risk of flooding (taking into account wider sustainable development
objectives), he exception test may have to be applied. The need for the exception test
will depend on the potential vulnerability of the site and of the development proposed, in
line with the Flood Risk Vulnerability Classification set out in national planning
guidance.’

The Guidance contained within the Planning Practice Guide states ‘The Sequential Test
does not need to be applied for...applications for minor development or change of use
(except for a change of use to a caravan, camping or chalet site, or to a mobile home or
park home site)

The site is located within Flood Zone 3a; the high probability flood zone, however, the
proposed use is considered to constitute a less vulnerable use. In this respect, the
Environment Agency’s Flood Risk Vulnerability Classification table identifies less
vulnerable development as appropriate within flood zone 3a. The Environment Agency
has not raised an objection to the proposal.

On balance, given that the site is already used for car parking and this proposal seeks
to provide a more formal car and coach parking area, subject to conditions requiring the
applicant to sign up to the Environment Agency’s Floodline Warning Direct Service and
subject to the applicant managing the operation of the car park appropriately in this
respect to ensure that the public are not put at risk in the event of a flood and given that
the car park will be closed over-night, the proposal is considered acceptable in flood risk
terms.

In terms of surface water management, no drainage strategy has been provided. The
Council’'s SuDS Engineers require the applicant to provide a drainage strategy. In this
instance it is considered that the requirements of the SuDS Engineers can be
addressed by the imposition of planning conditions. Subject to such conditions the
proposal is considered acceptable and policy compliant in the above regards. The
condition recommended by the Environment Agency in respect of oil separators can
also be imposed on any grant of permission.

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)
As the proposed development equates to less than 100sgm of new floorspace, and
does not involve the creation of a new dwelling (Class C3), the development benefits

from a Minor Development Exemption under the Community Infrastructure Levy
Regulations 2010 (as amended) and as such no charge is payable.

46



8.1

9.1

01

02

03

Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/00311/BC3M

Conclusion

Having regard to all material considerations it is considered that, subject to compliance
with the attached conditions, the proposed development would be acceptable and
compliant with the objectives of the relevant local development plan policies and
guidance as well as those contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.
The site is already used for informal parking. There is no objection to the principle of the
development, the design or impact on the character and appearance of the site or the
wider surrounding area. The proposed would not materially harm residential amenity, is
acceptable from a highways and transportation perspective and subject to conditions is
acceptable in flood terms. This application is therefore recommended for approval,
subject to conditions.

Recommendation

Members are recommended to GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION subject to the
following conditions:

The development hereby permitted shall begin no later than three years from the
date of this decision.

Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans: MW4328 (Block Plan dated 01/03/2020), MW4328 (Site
Location Plan dated 01/03/2020), Lifstan Way Current Layout Plan

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the
provisions of the Development Plan.

Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, full details of the
hard and soft landscape works to be carried out at the site shall have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. All planting
in the approved landscaping scheme shall be carried out in the first available
planting season following the first use of the development hereby approved. Any
trees or shrubs dying, removed, being severely damaged or becoming seriously
diseased within five years of planting shall be replaced with trees or shrubs of
such size and species as may be agreed with the Local Planning Authority. Hard
landscaping shall be implemented in full accordance with the approved scheme
prior to the first occupation of the development hereby approved. The details
submitted shall include:

i proposed finished levels or contours;

ii. hard surfacing materials and means of enclosing the site (including
elevations of any boundary treatments);

iii. details of the number, size and location of the trees, shrubs and
plants to be planted together with a planting specification and details
of the management of the landscaping site.

47



04

05

06

07

Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/00311/BC3M

Reason: To safeguard the character and appearance of the surrounding area and
the amenities of neighbouring occupiers in accordance with Policies DM1, DM3
and DM5 of the Development Management Document (2015) and Policies KP2 and
CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007).

Prior to the first use of the development hereby approved, full details of the
drainage infrastructure and a drainage strategy shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority. The approved drainage
infrastructure and strategy shall be implemented in full accordance with the
approved scheme prior to the first use of the development hereby approved and
be retained as such thereafter.

Reason: To ensure satisfactory drainage of the site in accordance with Policy
KP2 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Development Management Document (2015)
Policy DM14.

Prior to the first use of the development hereby approved, the applicant shall sign
up to the Environment Agency’s Floodline Warning Direct Service and shall be
retained as such in perpetuity.

Reason: To ensure the development is safe and to ensure compliance with the
National Planning Policy Framework (2019) and Core Strategy (2007) Policies KP1
and KP2.

No external lighting shall be installed unless and until details of all external
illumination of the site including the luminance and spread of light and the design
and specification of the light fittings has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the local planning authority. All illumination shall be designed in
accordance with the Institute of Lighting Professionals “Guidance Note 01/20:
Guidance notes for the reduction of obtrusive light”. All illumination within the
site shall be retained in accordance with the approved details. There shall be no
other lighting of the external areas of the site.

Reason: In the interests of the residential amenity of the adjoining residents and
to ensure that the development complies with the National Planning Policy
Framework (2019), Core Strategy (2007) Policies KP2 and CP4, Development
Management Document (2015) Policies DM1 and DM3 and the advice contained
within the Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

Construction works associated with the development hereby approved shall only
be undertaken between 8am and 6pm Monday to Friday and 8am to 1pm
Saturdays and at no other time whatsoever.

Reason: In the interests of the residential amenity of the adjoining residents and
to ensure that the development complies with the National Planning Policy
Framework (2019), Core Strategy (2007) Policies KP2 and CP4, Development
Management Document (2015) Policies DM1 and DM3 and the advice contained
within the Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

48



08

09

10

11

Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/00311/BC3M

No closed circuit television (CCTV) shall be installed until full details of the CCTV
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.
The CCTV shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: In the interests of the visual amenity of the surrounding area and to
ensure that the development complies with the National Planning Policy
Framework (2019), Core Strategy (2007) Policies KP2 and CP4, Development
Management Document (2015) Policies DM1 and DM3 and the advice within the
Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

Notwithstanding the information submitted and otherwise approved, the
development hereby approved shall not be first used unless and until a strategy
setting out in full the management arrangements for the car park hereby
approved, including the hours of operation, has been submitted to and approved
in writing by the local planning authority. The approved management plan shall
be implemented within prior to the first use of the development hereby approved.

Reason: In the interests of the residential amenity of the adjoining residents and
to ensure that the development complies with the National Planning Policy
Framework (2019), Core Strategy (2007) Policies KP2 and CP4, Development
Management Document (2015) Policies DM1 and DM3 and the advice within the
Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

Notwithstanding the information submitted with the application, no development
shall be undertaken unless and until tree protection measures in accordance with
British Standard BS 5837 have been implemented to protect the trees
surrounding the development site and these shall be retained throughout the
development.

Reason: To safeguard the character and appearance of the surrounding area in
accordance with policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management
Document (2015) and Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007).

Surface water draining from the areas of hardstanding hereby approved shall be
passed through an oil separator or a series of oil separators prior to being
discharged into any watercourse, soakaway or surface water sewer. The
separator(s) shall be designed and constructed to have a capacity compatible
with the area being drained, shall be installed prior to the occupation of the
development and shall thereafter be retained and maintained throughout the
lifetime of the development. Clean roof water or vehicle wash downs and
detergents shall not pass through the separator(s) and should be drained instead
to foul sewer or sealed systems.

Reason: To reduce the risk of pollution and to ensure satisfactory drainage of the

site in accordance with Policy KP2 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Development
Management Document (2015) Policy DM14.

49



01

02

03

04

Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/00311/BC3M

Informatives:

You are advised that as the proposed extension(s) to your property equates to
less than 100sgm of new floorspace the development benefits from a Minor
Development Exemption under the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations
2010 (as amended) and as such no charge is payable. See
www.southend.gov.uk/cil for further details about CIL.

You should be aware that in cases where damage occurs during construction
works to the highway in implementing this permission that Council may seek to
recover the cost of repairing public highways and footpaths from any party
responsible for damaging them. This includes damage carried out when
implementing a planning permission or other works to buildings or land. Please
take care when carrying out works on or near the public highways and footpaths
in the borough.

The applicant is reminded that this permission does not bestow compliance with
other regulatory frameworks. In particular your attention is drawn to the statutory
nuisance provisions within the Environmental Protection Act 1990 (as amended)
and also to the relevant sections of the Control of Pollution Act 1974. The
provisions apply to the construction phase and not solely to the operation of the
completed development. Contact 01702 215005 for more information.

If construction works are to be considered outside of normal hours especially
overnight it is recommended that the applicant applies for a prior consent
application under section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act 1974. A consent
enables the applicant to conduct the works without the worry of enforcement
provided they comply with it. The applicant will have to submit details of any
noisy works including type of plant and machinery to be used, proposed daily
start and finish times, consultation with nearby residents and businesses and
duration and time scales of the works. The applicant should contact the
Regulatory Services Team at Southend-on-Sea Borough Council for details.

50



TS



This page is intentionally left blank



€§



This page is intentionally left blank



Southchurch Park East
26-2-2020

by Charlotte White



=T

02/72.6)/i202058151F528



a T | DA THCTY - < I,
- -—“}\ L,




02/26/2020 1128



02/26/2020 11:28



02/26/2020 11 :23



12000 1. 31







Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/00655/FUL

Reference:

20/00655/FUL

Application Type:

Full Application

Ward: West Leigh 6

Proposal: Erect two storey side extension and part two storey first floor
and single storey rear and side extension, to form two
additional self-contained flats, lay out parking to front,
communal amenity space, cycle and refuse stores to rear,
alter elevations and form additional vehicular access onto
Western Road (Amended Proposal)

Address: 85 Western Road, Leigh-On-Sea, Essex

Applicant: Mr Lake

Agent: DAP Architecture

Consultation Expiry:

29th May 2020

Expiry Date:

22nd June 2020

Case Officer:

Robert Lilburn

Plan Nos:

905.001.00, 905.001.01, 905.002.01, 905.003.00,
905.004.00, 905.210.00, 905.211.00, 905.212.00,

905.213.00, 905.214.00, 905.215.00, 21208 se-01, 21208
se-02

Recommendation:

REFUSE PLANNING PERMISSION

109

T30
36| B4

25E

fid

124

e o

-
E

& agf) 9T
(v
L

&
kS -4
e 2
%
i
- b ®
3 81| = &
o El LB &
41 3
T 5T
@) B | e WRoap
& 02 LA )
I =
o & m
2 E
k-
(=]
! B\
B & Ta
5 = =

63



11

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

2.1

2.2

2.3

Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/00655/FUL

Site and Surroundings

The application relates to a two-storey semi-detached building within a residential area.
The submitted application form states that the existing use of the building is as a single
dwelling, however this is updated with a subsequent description as two flats. The
occupation as two self-contained flats appears from publicly available photographic
records to be a long-standing arrangement of over four years’ duration.

The submitted plans show that the existing flats each provide two bedrooms. They show
that the ground floor flat provides two 2-person bedrooms and measures some 74sgm
gross internal area (GIA). They also show that the first floor flat provides two bedrooms,
of which one is a 2-person sized room, and one is 6.5sgm which is below the standard
for a one-person bedroom further to the national Technical Housing Standards and is
therefore considered a one-bedroom flat. The flat measures some 60sgm GIA.

The existing building is finished externally in white painted render and roof tiles. It has a
single storey rear projection measuring approximately 5m in depth, with balustrades on
top and the roof of the extension used as a balcony. It has a two-storey bay and
decorative timber detailing to the gable above.

The frontage is open with no boundary wall and the space within the frontage has been
block-paved for car parking. A fence separates the front and rear, and a rear garden of
useable amenity space remains. Boundary treatments include low fences to the front
(sides) and higher fencing to the rear garden. The site is relatively flat.

The extensive frontage block-paving, car parking and two main doors (one to the side)
are the only obvious indications that the building is not a single dwelling, although these
could equally be features of a dwelling house. As well as for the current two flats, there
is no record of planning permission having been sought for the formation of a balcony at
the rear or the block paving of the frontage. However, these arrangements appear to be
long-standing. The character of the building is generally intact as that of a single
dwelling and in that regard is wholly consistent with and comfortably situated in and
complementary to its surroundings.

The immediate surroundings in Western Road are characterised predominantly by
larger dwelling houses.

The Proposal

The application seeks planning permission for the extension and reconfiguration of the
building to provide four self-contained flats.

The proposal incorporates a two-storey side extension which would measure some 3.7
m in width, half the width of the host semi-detached property, and would have a
subservient roof ridge and eaves level relative to the existing building, dropped down at
ridge level by some 0.5m. The front face of the side extension would be set back from
the existing building by some 0.3m.

The proposal also incorporates a part two storey, part first floor, part single storey rear

and side extension which would occupy the position of and extend beyond to both the
rear and side of the existing, smaller, single storey rear projection.

64



2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

2.11

2.12

2.13

2.14

Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/00655/FUL

The proposed extensions would have hipped, ridged roofs. The proposal also includes
some reconfiguration of existing window openings and frames.

The applicant describes the proposed external materials as a white render finish. The
submitted plans indicate that the roof would be finished in tiles similar in appearance to
the existing.

To the rear of the building a bin store would be provided. The submitted plans show that
it would accommodate four 240l wheeled bins. The store building would also provide
enclosed accommodation for a cycle store providing space for four bicycles. The
submitted plan shows that the bin and cycle store would be flat roofed, finished
externally in larch timber cladding with a green roof and metal doors.

The submitted plan shows that following the development 128 square metres of
communal amenity space would be available at the rear of the building equating to 43
square metres per flat.

The submitted plans show that Flat 1 at the ground floor rear of the building would
measure some 63.6 square metres in gross internal area (GIA) with two bedrooms,
accommodating 3 persons. The bedrooms would measure 11.6 square metres and 11.1
square metres respectively.

Flat 2 at the ground floor front of the building would measure some 49.7 square metres
GIA with one bedroom, accommodating two persons. The bedroom would measure
some 15.4 square metres.

Flat 3 at the first floor rear of the building would measure some 51.6 square metres GIA
with one bedroom, accommodating two persons. The bedroom would measure some 12
square metres.

Flat 4 at the first floor front of the building would measure some 49.7 square metres
GIA, with one bedroom, accommodating two persons. The bedroom would measure
15.1 square metres.

Four off-street car parking spaces would be provided to the front of the building in an
area of hard standing with contrasting hard surfacing indicated on the submitted plans
together with incidental soft landscaping to the edges.

It is noted that the submitted site layout plan incorrectly identifies the neighbouring
property to the east as no.83; the property to the immediate east on Western Road is
no.81 as shown on the location plan. This has not prejudiced the ability of the local
planning authority to determine the application.

This application follows a previous application 18/02277/FUL which was refused. That
application proposed to erect a two storey side extension and part ground/part first floor
rear extension to form two additional self-contained flats, lay out parking to front, with
communal amenity space, cycle and refuse stores to rear, alter rear elevation and
extend vehicular access onto Western Road. It was refused for the following reasons:

65



Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/00655/FUL

The proposed side and rear extensions would by reason of their size and design
be poorly integrated and overly dominant additions to the detriment of the
character and appearance of the host property, the street scene and the
surroundings including the rear garden scene. This would be unacceptable and
contrary to the National Planning Policy Framework, Policies KP2 and CP4 of the
Southend-on-Sea Core Strategy (2007), Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Southend-
on-Sea Development Management Document (2015) and the advice contained
within the Southend-on-Sea Design and Townscape Guide (2009);

The proposed rear extension, as a result of its height, rear extent and proximity
to site boundaries, would be a dominant, visually overbearing feature to
neighbouring occupiers causing an undue sense of enclosure and overbearing
impact. This would be harmful to neighbour amenities at nos.81 and 87 Western
Road, unacceptable and contrary to the National Planning Policy Framework,
Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Southend-on-Sea Core Strategy (2007), Policies
DM1 and DM3 of the Southend-on-Sea Development Management Document
(2015) and the advice contained within the Southend-on-Sea Design and
Townscape Guide (2009);

The high density form of the development would introduce the potential for a
degree of comings and goings and general activity which would be harmful to the
amenities of adjoining occupiers in an area characterised by a lower density of
accommodation with significantly less activity. The harm caused by this more
intense degree of activity in an extended semi-detached dwelling would be
unacceptable and contrary to the National Planning Policy Framework, Policies
KP2 and CP4 of the Southend-on-Sea Core Strategy (2007), Policies DM1 and
DM3 of the Southend-on-Sea Development Management Document (2015) and
the advice contained within the Southend-on-Sea Design and Townscape Guide
(2009);

The width of the proposed vehicular crossover would be excessive, and would
reduce the extent of dedicated footway unacceptably, harming highway safety
and compromising the safe and convenient passage of pedestrians, and the
visual quality of the residential environment. This would be unacceptable and
contrary to the National Planning Policy Framework, Policies KP2, CP3 and CP4
of the Core Strategy (2007), Policies DM1, DM3 and DM15 of the Development
Management Document (2015) and the advice contained within the Design and
Townscape Guide (2009).

2.15 The key differences between the application under consideration and the earlier refused
application are:

The two storey side projection would be stepped back from the existing front
elevation at both front elevation (by some 0.3m) and at roof level by some 0.5m
at ridge;

The two storey side and rear projection would be set in beyond the main rear
elevation by some 0.7 m;

The two storey element of the side and rear projection would be reduced to a
rear of extent of some 4.3m from 6.1m;

The two storey element of the side and rear projection would be increased in
height from the previously proposed 4.8m at eaves level to some 5.4m;

The frontage car parking spaces would be reconfigured so that the pedestrian

66



2.16

3.1

3.2

4.1

Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/00655/FUL

walkway would be positioned centrally rather than to the side;

e The proposed vehicular access would be divided in the middle by an island. A
total width of the two crossings would consequently be some 0.8 m wider;

e The cycle store and refuse store would be reconfigured into an enclosed building;

e The proposed roof form would be reconfigured into a less bulky form more
consistent with the existing building;

e The range of proposed accommodation would be altered from a previously
proposed two x two bed 3-person flats and two x 1-bed two person flats to one x
2 bed three person flat and three x 1-bed two person flats;

¢ Windows and doors would be reconfigured and windows would be introduced on
the east side elevation of the two-storey side projection.

e Two roof lights would be omitted.

The application has been called in to Development Control Committee by Councillor
Evans.

Relevant Planning History

18/02277/FUL: Erect two storey side extension and part ground/part first floor rear
extension to form two additional self-contained flats, layout parking to front, communal
amenity space, cycle and refuse stores to rear, alter rear elevation and extend vehicular
access onto Western Road (Amended Proposal). Refused.

18/01246/FUL.: Erect two storey side and rear extension with access to rear parking,
first and second floor rear extension to form three additional self-contained flats, install
dormer to rear, refuse and cycle stores, canopy to front, alter elevations and extend
vehicular access on to Western Road. Refused.

Representation Summary

Public Consultation
Nine neighbouring properties were notified and a site notice was posted. 15 letters of
representation have been received from 13 addresses. Concerns raised are
summarised as follows:

- Out of keeping with the character of the area;

- Effect on the sense of community;

- Cramped appearance and overdevelopment, overcrowding the site;

- Loss of privacy to neighbouring occupiers;

- Impacts on daylight and overshadowing to neighbouring occupiers;

- impacts of noise generated by occupiers;

- Overbearing appearance of proposed extensions;

- Impacts of refuse and cycle storage on neighbours;

- Loss of amenity to neighbours and wider area;

- Inadequate car parking for the development;

- Unsafe vehicular access;

- Traffic generation and impacts on highway safety;

- Impact of precedent for further development;

- Effect on house prices;

- Concern at processing of application during public health restrictions;

- Concern at repeated applications.

67



4.2

4.3

4.4

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

6.1

Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/00655/FUL

These concerns are noted and where relevant to material planning considerations they
have been taken into account in the assessment of the application. Those remaining are
found not to represent a reasonable basis to refuse planning permission in the
circumstances of this case.

Highways Team

One off street car parking space has been provided for each flat. The vehicle
crossovers that would serve the spaces are also policy compliant. The site is also in a
sustainable location with regard to public transport. No highway objections are raised.

Leigh Town Council

Object to the application as the changes shown have been insufficient and previous
objections remain. The proposal would, by reason of its design, size, bulk and mass,
represent a cramped form of development and an overdevelopment of the land, which is
out of keeping with and detrimental to the character and appearance of the application
site and the area more widely.

Planning Policy Summary

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2019)

Planning Practice Guidance and National Design Guide (2019)

Core Strategy (2007): Policies KP1 (Spatial Strategy) KP2 (Development Principles)
CP3 (Transport and Accessibility) CP4 (Environment & Urban Renaissance) CP8
(Dwelling Provision)

Development Management Document (2015): Policies DM1 (Design Quality) DM2 (Low
Carbon Development and Efficient Use of Resources) DM3 (The Efficient and Effective
Use of Land) DM7 (Dwelling Mix) DM8 (Residential Standards) DM15 (Sustainable
Transport Management)

Design & Townscape Guide (2009)

Vehicle Crossing Policy & Application Guidance (2014)

Waste Storage and Collection Guidance (2019)

National Housing Standards (2015)

CIL Charging Schedule (2015)

Planning Considerations

The main considerations in relation to this application are the principle of the
development, design and impact on the character of the area, impact on neighbouring

properties, living conditions for future occupiers, any traffic and transport issues and
CIL, and whether the application has overcome the earlier reasons for refusal.

68



6.2

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/00655/FUL

Since the application 18/02277/FUL was determined the revised National Planning
Policy Framework (2019) came into force, replacing a previous version of the NPPF. It
is considered that the contents of the revised NPPF do not materially alter the
assessment of the impacts of the proposal.

Appraisal
Principle of Development

Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
encourages effective use of land (para.8) in particular previously developed land
(para.117).

Policies KP1, KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007) seek to promote sustainable
development, including directing the siting of development through a sequential
approach, minimising the use of ‘greenfield’ land.

Policy KP2 requires that new development contributes to economic, social, physical and
environmental regeneration in a sustainable way through securing improvements to the
urban environment through quality design and respecting the character and scale of the
existing neighbourhood.

Policy CP4 seeks the creation of a high quality, sustainable urban environment which
enhances and complements the natural and built assets of Southend. Policy CP4
requires that new development be of appropriate design and have a satisfactory
relationship with surrounding development.

Policy CP8 requires that development proposals contribute to local housing needs. It
identifies housing targets for Southend and seeks to protect the supply of valuable
residential resources including the stock of large single family dwellings.

Policy DM1 seeks design quality that adds to the overall quality of an area and respects
the character of a site and its local context. Policy DM3 of the Development
Management Document (2015) seeks the efficient and effective use of land, provided it
responds positively to local context and does not lead to over-intensification.

The Design and Townscape Guide seeks to promote a high quality of design in new
developments. Para.80 of the Guide states that proposed accommodation mixes should
reflect the local character.

Policy DM7 sets out a preferred market housing mix of 9% one-bed units, 22% two-bed
units, 49% three-bed units and 20% four-bed units. Through Policy DM8 the Council
seeks appropriate flexibility and dimensions within the internal accommodation to meet
the changing needs of residents.

Policy DM15 states that development will be allowed where there is, or it can be
demonstrated that there will be, physical and environmental capacity to
accommodate the type and amount of traffic generated in a safe and sustainable
manner.

69



7.10

7.11

7.12

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

7.17

7.18

7.19

Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/00655/FUL

The principle of extensions to the building is acceptable. The site is sustainably located
in a reasonably accessible location. The proposal would add to the supply of housing
within the urban area, re-using previously developed land. This would generally accord
with the objectives of Policies KP1, KP2 and CP8 of the Core Strategy.

Single family dwellings are a unifying characteristic at this location and key to the local
character. The existing flats at this location are in a pair of larger units with amenity
space and landscaped setting commensurate with the local character, and as such may
be regarded as providing family type accommodation. The proposal would continue to
provide one unit of family sized accommodation albeit in a different configuration.

However, it would also be a higher density development introducing additional units of
relatively small flats. The size of the flats are not such that would contribute to the
greatest identified need in the Borough. The consequences of the higher density would
be the potential imposition of design and amenity impacts and these are considered
further below.

It is considered that the broad principle of residential development at this location is
acceptable. However, a higher density development including small flats has the
potential to harmfully impact the existing character and amenities, as well as altering the
standard of living conditions available to occupiers of the building. Further detailed
material planning considerations are discussed below.

Design and Impact on the Character of the Area

Paragraph 127 of the NPPF states that local planning authorities should aim to ensure
that developments are sympathetic to local character and history, including the
surrounding built environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or
discouraging appropriate innovation or change (such as increased densities).

Paragraph 130 of the NPPF states that “permission should be refused for development
of poor design that fails to take the opportunities available for improving the character
and quality of an area and the way it functions”.

The National Design Guide seeks well-designed places in which development
integrates and relates well into its surroundings.

The importance of good design is reflected in Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core
Strategy and also in Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management
Document. These policies seek to maintain and enhance the amenities, appeal and
character of residential areas.

The Design and Townscape Guide also states that “the Borough Council is committed
to good design and will seek to create attractive, high-quality living environments” and
that “proposed development [should] make a positive contribution to the local area”.

At para.64 the Guide states that development should reflect the positive characteristics
of its surroundings and extensions should integrate to their surroundings. Para.79
confirms the expectation that appropriate architectural language should be used
reflecting the use of the building.

70



7.20

7.21

7.22

7.23

7.24

7.25

7.26

Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/00655/FUL

As underlined at para.80 of the Guide, the best use of land should be made without
compromising quality of life. Para.85 of the Guide establishes that appropriate scale,
height and massing are essential to the successful integration of new development.
Para.115 of the Guide seeks cohesive design which responds positively to local context.

The existing building is a semi-detached form of building, and while the subject property
is divided into two flats, its appearance is typically characteristic of family dwellings to
be found in the area.

The principles underpinning the development plan policies and supplementary guidance
relating to domestic extensions are considered relevant to this proposal.

The submitted plans show that the two-storey side extension would measure some
3.7m in width, while the existing semi-detached property is some 7.4m in width. This
does not indicate a subservient scale of extension, particularly given the limited setting-
back of 0.3m. The extension roof ridge would be dropped by 0.5m from the existing.
The design of the extension including its roof form and the proportions of windows
would be reasonably consistent with the host building. There would be space separating
it from the neighbouring no.81 Western Road in the street scene and there would be no
harmful terracing effect.

The limited stepping-back of the front elevation combined with the width of the side
extension would not form an appropriately subservient extension. By virtue of this width
the extension would have the harmful visual effect of being unduly dominant and would
fail to respond appropriately to the existing building. This concern would not be
overcome by the use of appropriately matching or contrasting materials, for example.
The scale and design of the proposed rear element would be consistent with the scale,
design and character of dwellings and buildings in the immediate surroundings. While
the extensions would be significant in size, their design would reflect a simple domestic
character. However, the scale of the proposed side projection is such that it would fail to
integrate into the street scene appropriately. It would not be subservient to the parent
building and would fail to respect the scale of the host building. The scale and resulting
appearance of the development would thus be harmful to the visual amenities of the
area.

The layout of the frontage, providing car parking on a hardstanding in front of the flats,
is a negative aspect of the design. However, it would not be sufficiently different to the
existing situation, excluding the likely additional cars and the proposed extended
dropped kerb, to warrant a reason for refusal in its own right. The loss of the soft verge
to the highway would also not be a reasonable ground for refusal in its own right, given
the modest length and the existing absence of planting. However, this is also a negative
aspect of the current proposal. This does not alter the conclusions outlined above.

Impact on Residential Amenity

Paragraphs 124 and 127 of the National Planning Policy Framework seek to secure
high quality design and a good standard of amenity for all existing and future occupants
of land and buildings. Policy KP2 of the Core Strategy seeks to secure improvements to
the urban environment through quality design. Policy CP4 seeks to maintain and
enhance the amenities, appeal and character of residential areas.

71



7.27

7.28

7.29

7.30

7.31

7.32

7.33

Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/00655/FUL

Policies DM1 and DMS3 of the Development Management Document seek to support
sustainable development which is appropriate in its setting, and that “protects the
amenity of the site, immediate neighbours, and surrounding area, having regard to
matters including privacy, overlooking, outlook, noise and disturbance, sense of
enclosure/overbearing relationship, pollution, daylight and sunlight”.

The Design and Townscape Guide also states that “the Borough Council is committed
to good design and will seek to create attractive, high-quality living environments” and
that “extensions must respect the amenity of neighbouring buildings and ensure not to
adversely affect light, outlook or privacy of the habitable rooms in adjacent properties”.

The part single-storey, part-two storey rear extension would project a further 1m
rearward from the main part of the building, compared to the existing single storey rear
projection. The separation distance to the rear boundary of the site with the side
boundary of no.34 Leigh Gardens would be 12m. It is considered that this would be
sufficient as to not create a significant actual or perceived loss of privacy over and
above the existing situation.

The rear extension would be situated approximately 3.1m from the boundary with no.87
Western Road in common with the existing extension, and would be sited some 1.8m
from the boundary with no.81 Western Road, compared to the existing 4.8m. It would be
1m longer than the existing extension and would have a relative rear projection of some
6.1m compared to the rear face of no.81. Rather than being a single storey it would as a
result of the development be two storeys. The two storey element would be some 4.4m
in depth.

Having no side windows, the rear extension would functionally eliminate the overlooking
to either side currently resulting from the use of the roof as a terrace. This would provide
a degree of benefit to neighbouring occupiers. The proposed side facing windows would
be obscure glazed secondary windows. They would face on to the driveway of no.81
and towards its rear private amenity space. As they would be obscure glazed, which
can be secured by a condition, there would not be a material loss of privacy arising to
neighbouring occupiers.

Accounting for the 4.3m depth of the proposed two-storey side and rear element,
dropping to single storey for its final 1.8m, and accounting for its height and its
orientation and position relative to neighbouring dwellings and private amenity spaces at
either side, it is considered that it would not lead to a materially harmful impact on
occupiers in any relevant regard.

The proposed development would lead to a significant increase in the potential number
of occupiers present in the semi-detached property at any one time. This degree of
intensification would at times be discernible to the adjoining occupiers in particular,
through general activity and comings and goings. This is a negative aspect of the
proposal in the site context which is one characterised by single family dwellings and in
which the existing use is two larger flats. However it would not justify a refusal of
planning permission given the existing use and configuration of the building.

72



7.34

7.35

7.36

7.37

7.38

7.39

7.40

7.41

7.42

Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/00655/FUL

It is considered on balance that the proposed development is acceptable and policy-
compliant with regard to neighbour amenities.

Living Conditions for Future Occupiers

At para.127 the NPPF states that planning decisions should ensure that developments
create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health and
well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users. Due regard
may be had for the national Housing Technical Standards.

Policy DM1 of the Development Management Document requires that developments
provide an internal and external layout that takes account of all potential users. Policy
DM8 states that the internal environment of all new dwellings must be high quality and
flexible to meet the changing needs of residents.

Further to this, from the 1st October 2015 the National Housing Standards have been
adopted and state that the following internal floor space is required to ensure the
development is in line with Building Control requirements:

- One bed, two person flat: 50sgm;
- Two bed, three person flat: 61sgm.

The proposed floor areas shown on the submitted plans for Flats 1 and 3 would exceed
those required under the National Housing Standards. The slight shortfall with respect
to Flats 2 and 4 would not be materially harmful in the context. Satisfactory outlook and
daylight conditions would be available to all flats and the earlier concern in relation to
the depth of rooms has been overcome by proposed secondary, obscure glazed
windows.

Policy DM8 of the Development Management Document states that all new dwellings
must make provision for usable private outdoor amenity space for the enjoyment of
intended occupiers. The Council’s Design and Townscape Guide states that “Outdoor
space significantly enhances the quality of life for residents and an attractive useable
garden area is an essential element of any new residential development”.

Policy DM8 of the Development Management Document states that all new dwellings
should meet the Lifetime Homes Standards, which from the 1st of October 2015 have
been substituted by Building Regulation M4(2).

Part M4(2) of the Building Regulations adopted by the National Technical Housing
Standards requires accessible and adaptable dwellings. Building regulations require
‘reasonable provision’ with reference to Part M4(2) on conversion schemes.

No details have been supplied to demonstrate that the development would be
accessible and adaptable for all. By reason of being a conversion it is considered that it
would be unfeasible to require the development to accord with the abovementioned
standards. Therefore the application should not be refused on the grounds that it has
not been demonstrated that the development would accord with Part M4(2) of the
Building Regulations.

73



7.43

7.44

7.45

7.46

7.47

7.48

7.49

7.50

7.51

Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/00655/FUL

The proposal would form a 4 unit apartment building with 129sgm of useable outdoor
amenity space. It is considered that this quantity and quality of outdoor amenity space
would be adequate to meet the domestic and recreational needs of occupiers.

Refuse and cycle storage has been shown on the submitted plans and this could be
required through a condition on any grant of planning permission. It would be situated
adjacent a neighbouring outbuilding and, on this basis, would not be materially harmful
to neighbour amenities. The proposal is on balance considered acceptable and
compliant with the policies relating to living conditions.

Traffic and Transportation Issues

Policy DM15 of the Development Management Document requires that all development
should meet the minimum off-street parking standards and as such, one parking space
would be required for each proposed flat.

The submitted plans indicate that four off-street car parking spaces would be made
available at the site. A cycle storage area has been shown on the submitted plan.
Further details of secure cycle storage would be required and could be secured as a
condition of any planning permission.

The Council's Vehicle Crossing Policy & Application Guidance is a material
consideration. The proposal includes the creation of a vehicular crossover of a minimum
10.6m width with a 1m wide island. The vehicle crossovers would not exceed the
maximum permitted width of 4.8m.

The highways officer has not objected to the application. The proposal is considered
acceptable and policy compliant in regard to parking and highway safety.

Sustainability

Policy KP2 of the Core Strategy states that “All development proposals should
demonstrate how they will maximise the use of renewable and recycled energy, water
and other resources. This applies during both construction and the subsequent
operation of the development. At least 10% of the energy needs of new development
should come from on-site renewable options (and/or decentralised renewable or low
carbon energy sources), such as those set out in SPD 1 Design and Townscape
Guide’.

Policy DM2 of the Development Management Document part (iv) requires water efficient
design measures that limit internal water consumption to 105 litres per person per day
(Ipd) (110 Ipd when including external water consumption). Such measures will
include the use of water efficient fittings, appliances and water recycling systems such
as grey water and rainwater harvesting. Whilst details have not been submitted for
consideration at this time, this could be dealt with by condition if the application were
deemed acceptable.

A condition can be attached to any planning permission, requiring energy efficient

design measures, water efficient design measures and permeable surfacing, for
example. The proposals are considered acceptable with reference to these matters.

74



7.52

8.1

10

Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/00655/FUL

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)

This application is CIL liable. If the application had been recommended for approval, a
CIL charge would have been payable. If an appeal is lodged and allowed the
development will be CIL liable. Any revised application would also be CIL liable.

Conclusion

Having taken all material planning considerations into account, it is found that the
proposed development would be unacceptable and contrary to the objectives of the
relevant development plan policies and guidance. The proposed development of higher
density flats would be out of keeping with the general character of the area as larger
family dwellings. The amenities of neighbours would be harmed by the degree of
general activity introduced by the high density of accommodation in this context. The
proposal has overcome the earlier concerns in regard to design and highways matters.
However, for the above reasons, the proposed development is unacceptable and fails to
comply with planning policy. The benefits of the proposal, such as removing the roof
terrace at the rear, and provision of additional dwellings, are not considered to outweigh
the harm identified. The revised proposals have not overcome all the earlier reasons for
refusal.

Recommendation
REFUSE PLANNING PERMISSION for the following reasons:

01.The proposed side and rear extension would, by reason of its scale, size,
design and width, including the limited set-back from the front elevation of
the main building, result in an overly dominant, disproportionate and
unsympathetic addition, to the significant detriment of the character and
appearance of the existing building and the wider street scene. This would
be unacceptable and contrary to the National Planning Policy Framework;
Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007); Policies DM1 and DMS3 of
the Development Management Document (2015) and advice contained
within the adopted Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining
this application by identifying matters of concern with the proposal and
determining the application within a timely manner, clearly setting out the
reason(s) for refusal, allowing the Applicant the opportunity to consider the harm
caused and whether or not it can be remedied by a revision to the proposal. The
detailed analysis is set out in a report prepared by officers. In the circumstances
the proposal is not considered to be sustainable development. The Local
Planning Authority is willing to discuss the best course of action.

Informatives

Please note that this application would be liable for a payment under the
Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) if planning
permission had been granted. Therefore, if an appeal is lodged and subsequently
allowed, the CIL liability will be applied. Any revised application would also be CIL
liable.

75



Southend Borough Council Development Control Report Application Ref:20/00655/FUL

76



85 WESTERN ROAD, LEIGH-ON-SEA.

RESIDENTIAL USE: SNO. APARTMENTS
SCALE BAR 1:1250

10m 20m 30m 60m 90m

Om

PROJECT

RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT

DRAWING
AS EXISTING SITE LOCATION PLAN

CLIENT
SEARCH FLOW
ADDRESS

85 WESTERN ROAD
LEIGH-ON-SEA
SOUTHEND-ON-SEA

GENERAL NOTES

The copyright in all designs, drawings, schedules, specifications
and any other documentation prepared by DAP A rchitecture
Ltd. in relation to this project shall remain the property of DAP
Architecture Ltd. and must not be reissued, loaned or copied
without prior written consent.

ARCHITECTURE LTD
hing a. 3 + 5 Hospital Approach
The Millars

Chelmsford

ESSEX, CM1 7FA

. studio@daparchitecture.co.uk
t. (0844) 854 9007

W. www.daparchitecture.co.uk

sE '

SS9 2PT
DATE SCALE DRAWN BY
10.05.18 11250 @ A4 LD JB
rf ISSUE STATUS
EXISTING

CHECKED BY PROJECT No.

DWG No. REVISION

05.001.00

CHELMSFORD

LONDON BIRMINGHAM



This page is intentionally left blank



1102-60- L€ pajiwI suoinjos Aeaing pueo

186340.000mN

186320.000mN

186300.000mN

2 Storey Brick Private Dwellings

186280.000mN

N
xs

w
£
S
=1
=
o
@
Q
@
@
©

Private Gardens

B NTRAC
38.71 Pan1.8h .
Grass

w
£
S
=3
=
o
=]
=3
o
@
©

70
s

/ —
S ) _— — 3857
[ Gt
o /38.56
e,/
38.61 38.51
. o —
' ﬁ\
\ Grass
(o \ MH \ 1 Storey Brick Garage
7\ 38.44 CL38.58*\_
+ 38.48
38.42 +38.38
Sapling
P
\\ 38.35
* Grass 3&3’0+
\ Paving Slabs 3831 _ — — \
Private Gardens \ 3831 4 — 2832
38.32,,),/Y, - :

2 Storey Brick Private Dwellings

Stones 38.27
2> L

Private Gardens

No.85

B . p——
' RL idge Line — : -
: 4159 _Rids B
+ EN
No.87
%
L o FL AStFL | N
38.49 38.49 41.42 38.20'
38.50 .
¥ i 38.25 \ .
+38.21 \

Brick Pavers

583120.000mE

Tl o
=
o
Oz
Zl s
+
Flat Roof
43.76
No.81
. 2 Storey Brick Private Dwellings 4
" \%L.JM Ridge Line
- /

|38, \ - .
4415 " o o B3 \_ . —
’ S |\ OHL Sag Level - "\
E}
/ / = \ 4392 \ o —
/ . SRR - -
. . 38.19 *\' .M. 38.13 / \ -
/ Fo 138.0% +38.12 ) \ _—
\ - +38.10 \ P8 )
. - 0! ) - i wosl .
/ / \ g\ - CL 38.07 CL38.14) *\- Private Access
% . =
. V8V 7 BrickPavers D ot - 1
- : \ . 38.06 — =~ 377
38.05,  _ — — = — X
/ 38.00 155 03807 — — — — — & — = — — 755 3604 '3 Wall0.gh 37.96  ©SC
Private Access = 700 38.01 37'97/980 Wall 0.4h 5794
. ——— 7 "38.08 Wall 0.4h /1’ y - ST11/,\ 37.92 Asphalt X
’ 38.01 . oGV aroin  Asehalt 3708 _sresn_
© Asphalt 3798, "4 Cherry 5h 37.88
_—"38.06 °

oDR

2 Storey Brick Private Dwellings

" WESTERN ROAD

30mph Speed Limit - Asphalt

46.42

2 Storey Brick Private Dwellings

P

186340.000mN

583140.000mE

186320.000mN

186300.000mN

186280.000mN

RL Ridge e _——
e — ' 46.70 —
Ridge e — —
= i
J— J—
P
S
186260.000mN + . + 186260.000mN +
w w w w
£ £ £ £
<] S S S
o o o o
= © © ©
o o o o
I <] ] <
@ 1) 1) 1)
«Q oo} oo} oo}
[} 0 0 0
TOPOGRAPHICAL & MEASURED BUILDING SURVEYS DRAWING NOTE SURVEY CONTROL CO-ORDINATES
ABBREVIATIONS & SYMBOLS STATIONS EASTINGS NORTHINGS LEVEL DESCRIPTION
T hical S . SURVEY GRID AND LEVEL DATUM
. . v epographical Surveys STO1 583102.421 186283.549  37.960 PK Nail
AH  Arch Head Height FH  Fire Hydrant RSJ  Rolled Steel Joist ) L i _ _ . _
AR Assumed Route FBD  Floor Board Direction ~ S| Sign Post Trees are drawn to scale showing the average canopy spread. Descriptions and ST02 583157.658  186287.572 37.917 PK Nail The co-ordinate system established for this survey is related to Ordnance
AV Airvaive FH  Fire Hydrant SP Arch Spring Point Height heights should be used as a guide only. STO03 583097.230  186319.093 38.705 Peg/Nail Survey (OS) national grid at a single point using GPS Smartnet, then orientated
BB Belisha Beacon FL  Floor Level SV StopValve N o _ ) ) ST04 583001.884  186304.072 38.283 Peg/Nail to Grid North with a scale factor of 1.000.
BH Bore Hole FP Flag Pole SW  Surface Water All building names, descriptions, number of storeys, construction type including - g - 9
i tai indicati i t X T11 583110.912  186284.136 37.973 PK Nail . : .
g; E::a:VEI Qg Z::llyv;:; :c :::‘:ile Paving roctline detals are indicatve enly an taken extemaly from ground evel :T12 583104.097 186298.593 38.282 PK N !| The level datum established for this survey is related to Ordnance Survey (OS) Ipswich Coventry Yeovil Norwich Perth Nottingham Brentwood
X . ¥ ail ;
BrP  Brace Post GV Gas Valve TC  Telecom Cover All below ground details including drainage, voids and services have been using GPS Smartnet. P Y 9
BS Bus Stop HH Head Height TH Trial Pit identified from above ground and therefore all details relating to these features o _ _ . o ) _ X X
BU  Bush IC Inspection Cover THL  Threshold Level including; sizes, depth, description etc will be approximate only. All critical To avoid discrepancies, any co-ordinated data used in conjuction with this Tel No: 0845 0‘:05’ 969 K enquiries F:ero' 234\:’::530973
BW  Barbed Wire Fence I Invert Level TL Traffic Light dimensions and connections should be checked and verified prior to starting survey must be derived directly from this control data. www.survey-solutions.co.u quiries@survey-solutions.co.ul
BX  Box (Utilities) IR Iron Railings ToW  Top of Wall work.
CB  Close Board Fence KO Kerb Outlet TP Telegraph Pole . i . The major contour interval is 1 metre, the minor contour interval is 0.500 metreg. LAND SURVEYING BUILDING SURVEYING UNDERGROUND SURVEYING
CH Cill Height LP Lamp Post v Cable TV Cover Detail, services and features may not have been surveyed if obstructed or not
cL Cover Level MH  Manhole uB Universal Beam reasonably visible at the time of the survey.
CIL  Chain Link Fence MP  Marker Post UC  Unknown Cover
C-Lev Ceiling Level NB Name Board UK Unknown Tree Measured Building Surveys PROJECT TITLE
Col  Column OHL  Overhead Line (approx) USB  Under Side Beam 85 WESTERN ROAD, LEIGH-ON-SEA,
CIP  Chestnut Paling Fence Pan  Panel Fence UTL  Unable To Lift Measurements to internal walls are taken to the wall f_inishes at approx 1m SOUTHEND-ON-SEA, ESSEX, SS9 2PT
CR Cable Riser PB Post Box VP Vent Pipe above the floor level and the wall assumed to be vertical.
DC Drainage Channel PM Parking Meter WB Waste Bin DRAWING DETAIL
DH Door Head Height PO Post WH  Weep Hole Cill heights are measured as floor to the cill and head heights are measured TOPOGRAPHICAL SURVEY
DP Donn Pipe PR Post & Raril Fence WL Water Level from cill to the top of window. The survey control listed is only to be used for topographical surveys at the Sheet 1 of 1
DR Drain P Post & Wire Fence WM Water Meter stated scale. All control must be checked and verified prior to use.
EL Eaves Level P/Wall  Partition Wall wo Wash Out General CLIENT SCALE
EP Electric Pole RE Rodding Eye @ Floor to Ceiling Height © i imit 4 iaht t the i i X
ER Earth Rod RL Ridge Level @ The contractor must check and verify all site and building dimensions, levels, cohtaar;ge%uvrv\iﬁ{n‘?;ﬁli: ggcsulr.;rgrl“e gnzolg:irrxrﬁtoeﬁ]ygg:se?na :“:\:t ggo‘;rbll:i::g Mr. JAY NEALE 1:200
ET  EP+Transformer RP  Reflector Post F/C Floor to False Ceiling Ht utilities and drainage details and connections prior to commencing work. Any i ing t ta other t [t it igi
B Flower Bed RS Road Sign errors or discrepancies must be nofified to Survey Solutions immediately. 23forﬁe<;opymg or using the data other than for the purpose it was originally SURVEYOR SURVEY DATE| CHECKED BY | APPROVED BY| DWG STATUS
FBD  Floor Board Directon ~ RSD  Roller Shutter Door A Survey Control Station pplied. ADK 22/01/2018 HF JM FINAL
The accuracy °f. the digital data is the same as the plotting scale implies. All Do not scale from thisfgwing. DRAWING NUMBER REVISION ISSUE DATE
dimensions are in metres unless otherwise stated.
REV | DESCRIPTION DRAWN | APPR DATE 21208 se-01 26/01/2018

©Land Survey Solutions Limited 01/01/2010

Original Sheet Size A2V




This page is intentionally left blank



32 ERIERN RQAD, LEIGH-ON-SEA

GENERAL NOTES

The copyrighti n all designs, drawings, schedules,
specifications and any other documentation prepared by DAP
Architecture Ltd.in relation to this project shall remain the

property of DAP Architecture Ltd. and must not be reissued,
loaned or copied without prior written consent.

Do not scale from this drawing, use figured dimensions only.
Prefer larger scale drawings.

All dimensions are in millimeters (mm) unless otherwise noted.
Check all relevant dimensions, lines and levels on site before
proceeding with the work.

This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all Architect's
drawings, schedules and specifications,

and all relevant

consultants and/or specialists’ informationr elatingt o the
project. Refer all discrepancies to DAP Architecture Ltd.

1g1.2sam
communal
ameﬂ‘\'y

Lssam €2

REV.

DESCRIPTION.

DATE.

J—

ARCHITECTURE LTD

.

PROJECT
RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT

DRAWING

AS EXISTING
SITE LAYOUT + GROUND FLOOR PLAN

CLIENT

SEARCH FLOW

ADDRESS
85 WESTERN ROAD

LEIGH-ON-SEA

ESSEX
SS9 2PT
DATE SCALE DRAWN BY CHECKED BY
17.12.19 1100@ A2 UB JB
PROJECT No. DWG No.

005.001.01

ISSUE STATUS
RIBA STAGE 3 - PLANNING

AS EXISTING: SITE LAYOUT + GROUND FLOOR PLAN

81

3 + 5 Hospital Approach
The Millars

Chelmsford
ESSEX, CM1 7FA

studio@daparchitecture.co.uk
(0844) 854 9007

. www.daparchitecture.co.uk
CHELMSFORD LONDON

BIRMINGHAM



This page is intentionally left blank



85 WESTERN ROAD, LEIGH-ON-SEA.

RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT: 4NO. RESIDENTIAL APARTMENTS.

SCALE BAR 1:100

om m 2m 3m 6m 9m

NS

AS EXISTING: FIRST FLOOR PLAN

GENERAL NOTES

The copyrighti n all designs, drawings, schedules,
specifications and any other documentation prepared by DAP
Architecture Ltd.in relation to this project shall remain the
property of DAP Architecture Ltd. and must not be reissued,
loaned or copied without prior written consent.

Do not scale from this drawing, use figured dimensions only.
Prefer larger scale drawings.
All dimensions are in millimeters (mm) unless otherwise noted.

Check all relevant dimensions, lines and levels on site before
proceeding with the work.

This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all Architect's
drawings, schedules and specifications, and all relevant
consultants and/or specialists’ informationr elatingt o the
project. Refer all discrepancies to DAP Architecture Ltd.

REV. | DESCRIPTION. DATE.

ARCHITECTURE LTD

PROJECT

RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT

DRAWING
AS EXISTING
FIRST FLOOR PLAN

CLIENT
SEARCH FLOW

[

ADDRESS
85 WESTERN ROAD

LEIGH-ON-SEA

ESSEX

SS9 2PT

DATE SCALE DRAWN BY CHECKED BY
17.12.19 1100 @ A2 LD JB
PROJECT No. DWG No. REVISION

905.002.01

ISSUE STATUS
RIBA STAGE 3: PLANNING

3 + 5 Hospital Approach

The Millars

Chelmsford

ESSEX, CM1 7FA
studio@daparchitecture.co.uk
(0844) 854 9007
www.daparchitecture.co.uk

CHELMSFORD LONDON BIRMINGHAM



This page is intentionally left blank



85 WESTERN ROAD, LEIGH-ON-SEA. e s o e s s

specifications and any other documentation prepared by DAP
RESIDENTIAL SCHEME: 5NO. APARTMENTS.

Architecture Ltd.in relation to this project shall remain the
property of DAP Architecture Ltd. and must not be reissued,

loaned or copied without prior written consent.
- Do not scale from this drawing, use figured dimensions only.

SCALE BAR 1:100

3m 6m 9m

om Prefer larger scale drawings.

All dimensions are in millimeters (mm) unless otherwise noted.

Check all relevant dimensions, lines and levels on site before
proceeding with the work.
This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all Architect's
drawings, schedules and specifications, and all relevant
consultants and/or specialists’ informationr elatingt o the
project. Refer all discrepancies to DAP Architecture Ltd.

I

Grass

83

REV. DESCRIPTION. DATE.
Brick paving
ARCHITECTURE LTD
- PROJECT
e . RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT

DRAWING
AS EXISTING

’I !l VEHICULAR ACCESS PLAN

SEARCH FLOW

P aving

one

¥

S

ADDRESS
85 WESTERN ROAD

LEIGH-ON-SEA
SOUTHEND-ON-SEA

SS9 2PT
WESTERN ROAD e fogst B R
PROJECT No. DWG No. REVISION

905.004.00

ISSUE STATUS

EXISTING
3 + 5 Hospital Approach
The Millars
Chelmsford

ESSEX, CM1 7FA
studio@daparchitecture.co.uk

(0844) 854 9007
www.daparchitecture.co.uk

AS G: VEHICULAR ACCESS PLAN

CHELMSFORD LONDON BIRMINGHAM



This page is intentionally left blank



] Q
=]

Rear Elevation

West Elevation —

Fanlight
CH 2.06

CH1.12
HH 148 Steps 0.02 & 0.07h

Room

Laminate

Cupboard
Floorboards

—«— East Elevation

Mantel piece 1.12h
Hearth 0.05h

Lounge

DH 1.99

Laminate | |

VA
\
\

CH0.97
HH 1.14

Insertion Point

Front Elevation

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

Bedroom

Carpet

Balcony
Decking

Mantel piece 1.09h
Hearth 0.05h

Lounge

Carpet

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

Insertion Point

0
|

=2
D:N
ol|3
Zl <

10m

h:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:h:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:,

Scale Bar

TOPOGRAPHICAL & MEASURED BUILDING SURVEYS
ABBREVIATIONS & SYMBOLS

AH Arch Head Height FH Fire Hydrant RSJ Rolled Steel Joist

AR Assumed Route FBD  Floor Board Direction Sl Sign Post

AV Air Valve FH Fire Hydrant SP Arch Spring Point Height
BB Belisha Beacon FL Floor Level SV Stop Valve

BH Bore Hole FP Flag Pole Sw Surface Water

BL Bed Level FW Foul Water SY Stay

BO Bollard GG Gully Grate Tac Tactile Paving

BrP Brace Post GV Gas Valve TC Telecom Cover

BS Bus Stop HH Head Height TH Trial Pit

BU Bush IC Inspection Cover THL  Threshold Level

B/W Barbed Wire Fence IL Invert Level TL Traffic Light

BX Box (Utilities) IIR Iron Railings ToW  Top of Wall

Cc/B Close Board Fence KO Kerb Outlet TP Telegraph Pole

CH Cill Height LP Lamp Post TV Cable TV Cover

CL Cover Level MH Manhole uB Universal Beam

C/L Chain Link Fence MP Marker Post uc Unknown Cover
C-Lev Ceiling Level NB Name Board UK Unknown Tree

Col Column OHL  Overhead Line (approx) USB  Under Side Beam
Cc/P Chestnut Paling Fence  Pan Panel Fence uTL Unable To Lift

CR Cable Riser PB Post Box VP Vent Pipe

DC Drainage Channel PM Parking Meter WwB Waste Bin

DH Door Head Height PO Post WH Weep Hole

DP Down Pipe P/R Post & Rail Fence WL Water Level

DR Drain PIW Post & Wire Fence WM Water Meter

EL Eaves Level P/Wall  Partition Wall WO Wash Out

EP Electric Pole RE Rodding Eye @ Floor to Ceiling Height
ER Earth Rod RL Ridge Level

ET EP+Transformer RP Reflector Post @F/C Floor to False Ceiling Ht
FB Flower Bed RS Road Sign

FBD  Floor Board Direction RSD  Roller Shutter Door A Survey Control Station

DRAWING NOTE
Topographical Surveys

Trees are drawn to scale showing the average canopy spread. Descriptions and
heights should be used as a guide only.

All building names, descriptions, number of storeys, construction type including
roof line details are indicative only and taken externally from ground level.

All below ground details including drainage, voids and services have been
identified from above ground and therefore all details relating to these features
including; sizes, depth, description etc will be approximate only. All critical
dimensions and connections should be checked and verified prior to starting
work.

Detail, services and features may not have been surveyed if obstructed or not
reasonably visible at the time of the survey.

Measured Building Surveys

Measurements to internal walls are taken to the wall finishes at approx 1m

47.59

Sloping Roof Tiles

45.79 4564
rick
VP
\'-H— 44.15
T r 43.96
Vents
| [
42.18
Render
DP
Render
40.62 40.90
— — [ | |
@ <Hl— 40.53
39.40 [
oot — poer 39.26
Render ] -
<H— 38.51 Render
AB= AB= Render = AB LJ

7 38.20 O Steps

H

38.19

FRONT ELEVATION

0
|

5m

10m

h:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:h:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:-:,

Scale Bar

4579 "
—— 45.64

Sloping Roof Tiles

Sloping Roof Tiles

Brick
Boxao VP
44.15 f — 44.15
43.96
Vent § —~— 4368 O Vent
Render Bannisters Parapet Wall
42.72 <42.46 42.41
o >~
Bl Wooden Decking
o 41.56
Asphalt Roof
Sateliite Dish Brackets DP P %j] ) 4143
o || T
"/ [ Vent e 1=
—————— —— 40.99 __=—==—40.95 41.19
4053~ vent 4051 vents [ 110 vent C
— 40.42 o
Render el Letterbox Render
39.59 N — L Door N 3974
0
Box o Tap Gas Pipe||n 39.26
op H— 38.51
| —aAB  Render Il Render =AB
38.38> — 38.32
38.25

EAST ELEVATION

47.59
4714 _é
Brick
45.64 — Sloping Roof Tiles
45.28
VP
4419 b ; 4415 ——
43.96
43,56 43.56 43,96 —]
Vent O oVent 3 _
UTS Detail [
X Door
\Window
241 —— Parapet Wall 42.43 42.43 Parapet Wall
42.38
T 41.67
I
ﬁ-' Render 4118 =
. 40.92 —. ——— 41, 40.94
DP OVents j |:| VentsO O Vent Render =
& Ell:“il ‘:“10.57 40.54 — —
% 401 Sloping Tiles D
Render
= | Doof 39,57 oof|
_ Render Door
se.27 Vent
O
[ %852 88— AB
AB= Render = AB = AB Render = Z
38.32 3827 38.32 i 38.27 38.34 _, 3834

35.00 metres above Ordnance Datum

REAR ELEVATION

WEST ELEVATION

above the floor level and the wall assumed to be vertical.

Cill heights are measured as floor to the cill and head heights are measured
from cill to the top of window.

General

The contractor must check and verify all site and building dimensions, levels,
utilities and drainage details and connections prior to commencing work. Any
errors or discrepancies must be notified to Survey Solutions immediately.

The accuracy of the digital data is the same as the plotting scale implies. All
dimensions are in metres unless otherwise stated.

The survey control listed is only to be used for topographical surveys at the
stated scale. All control must be checked and verified prior to use.

© Land Survey Solutions Limited holds the copyright to all the information
contained within this document and their written consent must be obtained
before copying or using the data other than for the purpose it was originally
supplied.

Do not scale from this drawing.

SURVEY CONTROL CO-ORDINATES

STATIONS EASTINGS NORTHINGS LEVEL DESCRIPTION
SURVEY GRID AND LEVEL DATUM
All levels relate to and are taken from drawing 211 se-01.

REV | DESCRIPTION DRAWN | APPR DATE

SURVEY

== SOLUTIONS

Ipswich Coventry Yeovil Norwich Perth Nottingham Brentwood

Tel No: 0845 0405 969
www.survey-solutions.co.uk

Fax No: 0845 0405 970
enquiries@survey-solutions.co.uk

LAND SURVEYING BUILDING SURVEYING UNDERGROUND SURVEYING

PROJECT TITLE

85 WESTERN ROAD, LEIGH-ON-SEA,
SOUTHEND-ON-SEA, ESSEX, SS9 2PT

DRAWING DETAIL

MEASURED BUILDING SURVEY
FLOOR PLANS & ELEVATIONS Sheet 1 of 1

CLIENT SCALE

Mr. JAY NEALE 1:100
SURVEYOR | SURVEY DATE| CHECKED BY | APPROVED BY | DWG STATUS
ADK 26/01/2018 HF M FINAL
DRAWING NUMBER REVISION ISSUE DATE
21208 se-02 23/01/2018

©Land Survey Solutions Limited 01/01/2010

Original Sheet Size A1H




This page is intentionally left blank



85 WESTERN ROAD, LEIGH-ON-SEA.

RESIDENTIAL SCHEME: 5NO. APARTMENTS

SCALE BAR 1:100

om

I l 307.78 cm . l

m 2m 3m 6m 9m

IS

|

]
i

L

7

GENERAL NOTES

The copyrighti n all designs, drawings, schedules,
specifications and any other documentation prepared by DAP
Architecture Ltd.in relation to this project shall remain the
property of DAP Architecture Ltd. and must not be reissued,
loaned or copied without prior written consent.

Do not scale from this drawing, use figured dimensions only.
Prefer larger scale drawings.
All dimensions are in millimeters (mm) unless otherwise noted.

Check all relevant dimensions, lines and levels on site before
proceeding with the work.

This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all Architect’'s
drawings, schedules and specifications, and all relevant
consultants and/or specialists’ informationr elatingt o the
project. Refer all discrepancies to DAP Architecture Ltd.

FRONT ELEVATION

68

SIDE ELEVATION

j0

REAR ELEVATION

AS EXISTING: ELEVATIONS

SIDE ELEVATION

REV. [ DESCRIPTION. DATE.

ARCHITECTURE LTD

PROJECT

RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT

DRAWING
AS EXISTING
ELEVATIONS

CLIENT
SEARCH FLOW

ADDRESS
85 WESTERN ROAD

LEIGH-ON-SEA
SOUTHEND-ON-SEA

SS9 2PT
DATE SCALE DRAWN BY CHECKED BY
14.05.18 1100 @ A2 LD JB
PROJECT No. DWG No. REVISION

905.003.00

ISSUE STATUS

EXISTING
a. 3 + 5 Hospital Approach
The Millars
Chelmsford
ESSEX, CM1 7FA
e. studio@daparchitecture.co.uk

t. (0844) 854 9007
W. www.daparchitecture.co.uk

CHELMSFORD LONDON BIRMINGHAM


RobertLilburn
Distance Measurement
307.78 cm


This page is intentionally left blank



GENERAL NOTES
The copyright in all designs, drawings, schedules,
— 1 specifications and any other documentation prepared by DAP
, Architecture Ltd. in relation to this project shall remain the

RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT: 4NO. APARTMENTS i e i el o ik o e

SCALE BAR 1100

Do not scale from this drawing, use figured dimensions only.
Prefer larger scale drawings.
Om 1m 2m 3m 6bm m

9
| | All dimensions are in millimeters (mm) unless otherwise noted.

Check all relevant dimensions, lines and levels on site before
proceeding with the work.

This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all Architect's
drawings, schedules and specifications, and all relevant
consultants and/or specialists’ information relating to the
project. Refer all discrepancies to DAP Architecture Ltd.

128saqm
communal
amenity

=

2
'E':D L3sqm each
3

‘,’I _— :
i J ¥
. ’%‘ =i L L% REV. |DESCRIPTION, DATE.
| = —— ' ] 3 s
X le il . f
{ .""f S

DAP

peoROO!

ARCHITECTURE LTD

PROJECT
RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT

DRAWING

AS PROPOSED
SITE LAYOUT + GROUND FLOOR PLAN

CLIENT
| 7500 SEARCH FLOW

ADDRESS

4800 85 WESTERN ROAD
LEIGH-ON-SEA

' e ESSEX
— 7 U
- DATE SCALE DRAWN BY CHECKED BY

09.03.2020 1:100@A2 LC JB

PROJECT No. DWG No. REVISION

905. 210. 00

ISSUE STATUS

RIBA STAGE 3 - PLANNING

3 + 5 Hospital Approach

The Millars

Chelmsford

ESSEX, CM1 7FA
studio@daparchitecture.co.uk
(0844) 854 9007

W. www.daparchitecture.co.uk

F{' N
[lisssssassssast

be
A=

™~ o

91
AS PROPOSED SITE LAYOUT + GROUND FLOOR PLAN CHELIERORD LONEoN WRPHNTEAN



RobertLilburn_1
Distance Measurement
308.14 cm


This page is intentionally left blank



GENERAL NOTES

The copyright in all designs, drawings, schedules,
specifications and any other documentation prepared by DAP
Architecture Ltd. in relation to this project shall remain the

RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT: 4NO. APARTMENTS i e i el o ik o e

SCALE BAR 1:100
Do not scale from this drawing, use figured dimensions only.
Prefer larger scale drawings.

1 ' 305.56 cm . | All dimensions are in millimeters (mm) unless otherwise noted.
Check all relevant dimensions, lines and levels on site before
proceeding with the work.

This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all Architect's
drawings, schedules and specifications, and all relevant
consultants and/or specialists’ information relating to the
project. Refer all discrepancies to DAP Architecture Ltd.

NG
¥
N
\ L LINI
¢

REV. |DESCRIPTION, DATE,
ARCHITECTURE LTD
PROJECT
RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT
DRAWING
AS PROPOSED
SITE LAYOUT + FIRST FLOOR PLAN
l CLIENT
SEARCH FLOW
ADDRESS
85 WESTERN ROAD
LEIGH-ON-SEA
e e e i e e ESSEX
— SS9 2PT
DATE SCALE DRAWN BY CHECKED BY
09.03.2020 1:100@A2 LC JB

PROJECT No. DWG No. REVISION

905. 211. 00

ISSUE STATUS
RIBA STAGE 3 - PLANNING

a. 3 + 5 Hospital Approach
The Millars
Chelmsford
ESSEX, CM1 7FA
e. studio@daparchitecture.co.uk
t. (0844) 854 9007
W. www.daparchitecture.co.uk

93
AS PROPOSED SITE LAYOUT + FIRST FLOOR PLAN CHELMSFORD LONDON BIRMINGHAM



RobertLilburn_2
Distance Measurement
305.56 cm


This page is intentionally left blank



85 WESTERN ROAD, LEIGH-ON-SEA

RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT: 4NO. APARTMENTS

SCALE BAR 1100

Om 1m 2m 3m 6m 9m

W E

AS PROPOSED SITE LAYOUT + ROOF PLAN

GENERAL NOTES

The copyright in all designs, drawings, schedules,
specifications and any other documentation prepared by DAP
Architecture Ltd. in relation to this project shall remain the
property of DAP Architecture Ltd. and must not be reissued,
loaned or copied without prior written consent.

Do not scale from this drawing, use figured dimensions only.
Prefer larger scale drawings.
All dimensions are in millimeters (mm) unless otherwise noted.

Check all relevant dimensions, lines and levels on site before
proceeding with the work.

This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all Architect's
drawings, schedules and specifications, and all relevant

consultants and/or specialists’ information relating to the
project. Refer all discrepancies to DAP Architecture Ltd.

A

No. 83

REV. | DESCRIPTION, DATE.

ARCHITECTURE LTD

PROJECT

RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT

DRAWING

AS PROPOSED
SITE LAYOUT + ROOF PLAN

CLIENT
SEARCH FLOW

ADDRESS

85 WESTERN ROAD
LEIGH-ON-SEA

ESSEX

959 2PT

DATE SCALE DRAWN BY CHECKED BY

09.03.2020 1:100@A2 LC JB
PROJECT No. DWG No, REVISION

905. 212. 00

ISSUE STATUS
RIBA STAGE 3 - PLANNING

a. 3 + 5 Hospital Approach
The Millars
Chelmsford
ESSEX, CM1 7FA
e. studio@daparchitecture.co.uk
t. (0844) 854 9007
w.  www.daparchitecture.co.uk

CHELMSFORD LONDON BIRMINGHAM



This page is intentionally left blank



85 WESTERN ROAD, LEIGH-ON-SEA.

RESIDENTIAL SCHEME: 4NO. RESIDENTIAL APARTMENTS

i

_!
\l\

i T

< & |
AS PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION AS PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION
AS PROPOSED REAR ELEVATION AS PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION

GENERAL NOTES

The copyright in all designs, drawings, schedules,
specifications and any other documentation prepared by DAP
Architecture Ltd. in relation to this project shall remain the
property of DAP Architecture Ltd. and must not be reissued,
loaned or copied without prior written consent.

Do not scale from this drawing, use figured dimensions only.
Prefer larger scale drawings.
All dimensions are in millimeters (mm) unless otherwise noted.

Check all relevant dimensions, lines and levels on site before
proceeding with the work.

This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all Architect's
drawings, schedules and specifications, and all relevant
consultants and/or specialists' information relating to the
project. Refer all discrepancies to DAP Architecture Ltd.

REV. | DESCRIPTION. DATE.

ARCHITECTURE LTD

PROJECT
RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT

DRAWING
AS PROPOSED
ELEVATIONS

CLIENT
SEARCH FLOW

ADDRESS

85 WESTERN ROAD
LEIGH-ON-SEA

ESSEX

559 2PT

DATE SCALE DRAWN BY CHECKED BY

09.03.2020 1:100@A2 LC JB
PROJECT No. DWG No. REVISION

905. 213. 00

ISSUE STATUS
RIBA STAGE 3: PLANNING

a. 3 + 5 Hospital Approach
The Millars
Chelmsford
ESSEX, CM1 7FA
e studio@daparchitecture.co.uk
t. (0844) 854 9007
w.  www.daparchitecture.co.uk

CHELMSFORD LONDON BIRMINGHAM



This page is intentionally left blank



85 WESTERN ROAD, LEIGH-ON-SEA.

RESIDENTIAL SCHEME: 4NO. RESIDENTIAL APARTMENTS

SCALE BAR 1:100

Om 1

m 2m 3m 6m 9

m

66

4865

et
-
it

Residential Property:
89 Western Road, Leigh-on-Sea

Residential Property:
87 Western Road, Leigh-on-Sea

AS PROPOSED STREET SCENE ALONG WESTERN ROAD

e e e

AS PROPOSED SITE SECTION

Residential Property:
85 Western Road, Leigh-on-Sea

Lokk

-

T T T T T

I
=SS NSNENENE

T

b S

‘!b-'_______

Residential Property:
83 Western Road, Leigh-on-Sea

=HH=IIH=IIII=HH=HII=IIH=IIIIﬁ ==

GENERAL NOTES

The copyright in all designs, drawings, schedules,
specifications and any other documentation prepared by DAP
Architecture Ltd. in relation to this project shall remain the
property of DAP Architecture Ltd. and must not be reissued,
loaned or copied without prior written consent.

Do not scale from this drawing, use figured dimensions only.
Prefer larger scale drawings.
All dimensions are in millimeters (mm) unless otherwise noted.

Check all relevant dimensions, lines and levels on site before
proceeding with the work.

This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all Architect's
drawings, schedules and specifications, and all relevant
consultants and/or specialists’ information relating to the
project. Refer all discrepancies to DAP Architecture Ltd.

REV. [DESCRIPTION. DATE.

ARCHITECTURE LTD

PROJECT
RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT

DRAWING

AS PROPOSED
STREET SCENE & SITE SECTION

CLIENT

SEARCH FLOW

ADDRESS

85 WESTERN ROAD
LEIGH-ON-SEA

ESSEX

$59 2PT

DATE SCALE DRAWN BY CHECKED BY

09.03.2020 1:100@A2 LC JB
PROJECT No. DWG No. REVISION

214. 00

ISSUE STATUS
RIBA STAGE 3: PLANNING

a. 3 + 5 Hospital Approach
The Millars
Chelmsford
ESSEX, CM17FA

905.

e. studio@daparchitecture.co.uk

t. (0844) 854 9007

WwW. www.daparchitecture.co.uk
CHELMSFORD LONDON BIRMINGHAM



This page is intentionally left blank



85 WESTERN ROAD, LEIGH-ON-SEA

RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT: 4NO. APARTMENTS
SCALE BAR 1:100

im 2m 3im fm 9

Om m

TOT

REAR ELEVATION

_\ Ne=

SIDE ELEVATION

’
<

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

AS PROPOSED BIN AND BIKE STORE

SIDE ELEVATION

ROOF PLAN

GENERAL NOTES

The copyright in all designs, drawings, schedules, specifications
and any other documentation prepared by DAP Architecture
Ltd. in relation to this project shall remain the property of DAP
Architecture Ltd. and must not be reissued, loaned or copied
without prior written consent

PROJECT
RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT

DRAWING

AS PROPOSED BIKE AND BIN STORE

CLIENT

SEARCH FLOW

ADORESS A 2

85 WESTERN ROAD

a 3 + 5 Hospital Approach

LEIGH-ON-SEA _ f | The Millars
S R . { Chelmsford
ESSEX | & 3| ESSEX, CM1 7FA
SS9 2PT g Ul b -3 studio@daparchitecture.co.uk

L~ (0844) 854 9007
W, www.daparchitecture.co.uk

DATE SCALE DRAWN BY CHECKED BY PROJECT Mo DWG No. REWVISION

09.03.2020 1:100@A3 LC JB 9 2 1 5
ISSUE STATUS O 5 0 O
= =

RIBA STAGE 3 - PLANNING

CHELMSFORD LONDON BIRMINGHAM




This page is intentionally left blank






e —q:_o:.—«vva.:.g\up,r@l. 25 .rx?f""s';’s sl o o

et













From no.81







(e
i)
)

()

>
Q

Q

Q
RS

(7p]
i
o0




Looking north on site towards garden of no.34 Leigh Gardens










This page is intentionally left blank



Reference:

20/00580/FUL

Ward: St Laurence

Proposal: Install external refrigeration plant to North elevation
Address: Morrisons, Western Approaches, Eastwood, Essex, SS2 6SH
Applicant: WM Morrisons

Agent: Darton B3

Consultation Expiry: 28.04.2020

Expiry Date: 08.06.2020

Case Officer:

Scott Davison

Plan Nos:

20016, 20017, 90001B, 90002, 90003 & 90004 Noise Impact
Noise Impact Assessment by Acoustic Control Ltd
Reference: B5253 2020-05-04 R.& Plant Specification in the
email from Darton B3 dated 15t May 2020

Recommendation:

GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION subject to conditions

filv}

Repton Green El

P

Sheiter
2B 7m

705
Surgery

L5l

PR
Bl Ry

42| (T !
vl

sw“w\ﬁe

100 m

2,5

yE] e H6g

170 teg

7 &
s " 21 6m- WESTERN g
157

3 <

el

S

115




11

1.2

2.1

2.2

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

Site and Surroundings

The application site is a single storey building on the southern side of Western
Approaches and also accessed from this road. There is a car park to the west of
the store and the service area for the unit is to the rear (north) of the building and
accessed directly from Western Approaches. There are various items of plant
located externally on the roof of the store and in the service yard. There are a
number of commercial units adjacent to the Morrison’s supermarket including a
public house. The areas surrounding the application site are residential with houses
to the east in Old Mead and along Western Approaches.

The application property is not listed and is not located within a conservation area
or within a Frontage Of Townscape Merit or within a Town Centre Shopping
Frontage. It is not subject to any specific planning designations.

The Proposal

Planning permission is sought to install external refrigeration plant to north
elevation of the building within the rear service yard. The proposal is comprised of
the following:

Installation of 1 No. fridge pack & 1 No. gas cooler

Erection of refrigeration plant compound comprised of new palisade fencing
and gates with new timber acoustic cladding fixed and Armco barriers

The proposal would result in the removal of an existing rear projection to the north
elevation of the building and the removal of existing plant within it would be
removed. The applicant has explained that new regulations require that by 2025, all
refrigerators should be run on CO2 rather than a carbon emissive gas (which is
currently the case). A container sited adjacent to the rear used for the storage of
fireworks would also be removed.

Relevant Planning History

Install one internally illuminated fascia sign to front elevation- Granted
(18/00284/ADV).

Change of use from betting offices (sui generis) to café (Class C3) - Prior Approval
Granted (17/00231/PA3COU).

Install two internally illuminated fascia signs and one internally illuminated totem
sign- Granted (17/00252/ADV).

Use Betting shop (Class Sui Generis) as Cafe (Class A3) (Lawful Development
Certificate-Proposed) - Refused Certificate of Lawfulness (16/02266/CLP).

Use vacant retail unit (Class Al) as betting office (Class A2)- Permitted
(04/00326/FUL)

116



4.1

4.2

4.3

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

6.1

7.1

Representation Summary
Public Consultation

Councillor Flewitt has called the application in for consideration by the Development
Control Committee.

A site notice was displayed and 14 neighbours were notified in writing. No letters of
representation have been received.

Environmental Health

No objections subject to conditions relating to noise.

Planning Policy Summary

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2019)

Core Strategy (2007) Policies KP1 (Spatial Strategy) KP2 (Development
Principles), CP3 (Transport and Accessibility) and CP4 (Environment & Urban
Renaissance)

Development Management Document (2015): Policy DM1 (Design Quality), Policy
DM3 (Efficient and Effective Use of Land) & DM15 (Sustainable Transport
Management)

The Design & Townscape Guide, 2009.

CIL Charging Schedule 2015

Planning Considerations

The main considerations are in relation to the principle of development, design and
impact on the character of the area, traffic and transportation and the impact on
residential amenity.

Appraisal

Principle of Development

The principle of the development is assessed against the NPPF, Core Strategy
policies KP1, KP2 and CP4; Development Management Document Policies DM1,
DM3 and the Design and Townscape Guide. Given that the proposed development
will replace existing units, it accords in principle with all the aforementioned policies,

thus no objection is raised subject to the material planning considerations detailed
below.

117



7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

Design, Impact on the Character of the area

The proposed external refrigeration plant will be located to the north elevation of the
building and contained within an external compound which would project some
6.5m from the rear of the building and would be some 9.2m wide and 3m high. The
new plant and equipment would be contained within the compound and would not
be any higher than the fencing. An existing flat roof brick built rear projection some
8.2m wide, 5.2m high and 2.8m deep would be removed as a result of the
development as would a shipping container (3m wide x 2.5m x 6m) which is used
for the storage of fireworks.

The compound would have a larger footprint than the existing rear projection and
container but would not be set any closer to the northern of eastern boundaries of
the site than structures to be removed. In terms of impact on the character and
appearance of the streetscene, the container and rear projection on the northern
elevation of the building are visible in limited views from Western Approaches from
the entrance to the service yard. The compound would be visible from dwellings to
the east of the site in Oldmead. Although the proposed compound would have
greater site coverage than the existing facilities it would not be set any closer to the
eastern boundary of the site and sufficiently removed from the northern boundary of
the site. It is considered that proposed development would be seen in the context of
the service yard and would not result in any material harm to the character and
appearance of the building or the wider streetscene.

In summary it is considered that the proposed development would not harm the
visual amenities, character or appearance of the surrounding area by virtue of
scale, form or appearance and is acceptable and compliant with development plan
policy in the above regards.

Traffic and Transport Issues

The site is located in a rear service area which contains existing containers and
associated equipment used by the Supermarket in their daily operations. Given that
the proposed development would be located in a similar location to the facilities to
be removed and is away from Western Approaches, it is not considered that it
would result in any adverse impact on the functioning of the highway or pedestrian
pavement. The proposal is therefore acceptable and policy compliant in the above
regards.

Impact on neighbouring amenity

Policy KP2 of the Core Strategy seeks to secure improvements to the urban
environment through quality design. Policy CP4 seeks to maintain and enhance the
amenities, appeal and character of residential areas.

Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management Document seek to
support sustainable development which is appropriate in its setting. Policy DM1
requires new development to, “Protect the amenity of the site, immediate
neighbours, and surrounding area, having regard to privacy, overlooking, outlook,
noise and disturbance, visual enclosure, pollution, and daylight and sunlight.”

118



7.8

7.9

7.10

7.11

7.12

8.1

The Design and Townscape Guide also states that “the Borough Council is
committed to good design and will seek to create attractive, high-quality living
environments”.

The proposed development is for the installation of new refrigeration / air-
conditioning plant and a surrounding compound. The proposed development would
be located on the rear (north) elevation and an existing materially higher projection
would be removed. The nearest residential properties are some 30m to the east of
the site and the proposed development would not be any closer towards the
eastern boundary of the site. It is not considered that the proposed development
would give rise to any detrimental physical impact on nearby premises in terms of
an undue sense of enclosure or a loss of outlook.

The Environmental Health (EH) consultation response notes that

“there is already existing plant at the site and we do not have any records of
complaints from the nearby dwellings” .and “the proposed plant appears to be more
moderns [sic] and the plans show an acoustic fencing surround” . However EH
consider that the development could lead to heightened aware of equipment from
nearby occupiers and although no objections are raised, due to the limits of the
information submitted in support of the application further information is required
with regard to noise generation and conditions are requested to limit noise from the
plant and assess it when installed.

Subject to conditions, the proposed development is considered acceptable and
policy compliant in the above regards.

Community Infrastructure Levy
CIL Charging Schedule 2015

The proposed development would not create any additional floorspace at the
application site and therefore is not CIL liable.

Conclusion

Having taken all material planning considerations into account, it is found that
subject to compliance with the attached conditions, the proposed development
would be acceptable and compliant with the objectives of the relevant development
plan policies and guidance. The principle of the development is found to be
acceptable and the proposal would not cause harm to the character or appearance
of the application building or the wider surrounding area. It is considered that the
development would not cause material harm to the amenities of neighbouring
residents or the safety of the highway. Therefore, it is recommended that planning
permission is granted.

119



9.1

01

02

03

Recommendation

Members are recommended to: GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION subject to
the following conditions:

The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than three years from
the date of this decision.

Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out solely in accordance
with the following approved plans: 20016, 20017, 90001B, 90002, 90003 &
90004 and the Plant Specification set out in the email from Darton B3 dated
1st May 2020

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the
provisions of the Development Plan.

Noise from plant and equipment including extract ventilation shall be limited
to 10 dB(A) below the background noise level measured and expressed as a
LA90, 15minutes from the boundary of the nearest residential property.
Background noise levels shall be established for the following periods:

. Daytime 0700 to 1900
. Evening 1900 to 2300
. Night 2300 to 0700

In order to establish background noise level a representative survey shall be
undertaken in accordance with BS 4142:2014+A1:2019 at the boundary of the
nearest residential properties. To demonstrate compliance prior to operation
a post completion noise survey must be been undertaken by a suitably
qualified acoustic consultant, and a report submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. r

Reason: In order to protect the amenities of occupiers of the development
and surrounding residents in accordance with policies KP2 and CP4 of the
Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development
Management Document (2015).

The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in
determining this application by assessing the proposal against all material
considerations, including planning policies and any representations that may
have been received and subsequently determining to grant planning
permission in accordance with the presumption in favour of sustainable
development, as set out within the National Planning Policy Framework. The
detailed analysis is set out in areport on the application prepared by officers.

120



Informatives

01. You are advised that as the proposed works to your property creates no
new floorspace the development benefits from a Minor Development
Exemption under the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as
amended) and as such no charge is payable. See www.southend.gov.uk/cil
for further details about CIL.

02. You should be aware that in cases where damage occurs during
construction works to the highway in implementing this permission that
Council may seek to recover the cost of repairing public highways and
footpaths from any party responsible for damaging them. This includes
damage carried out when implementing a planning permission or other works
to buildings or land. Please take care when carrying out works on or near the
public highways and footpaths in the borough.

03 The applicant is reminded that this permission does not bestow
compliance with other regulatory frameworks. In particular your attention is
drawn to the statutory nuisance provisions within the Environmental
Protection Act 1990 (as amended) and construction noise provisions within
the Control of Pollution Act 1974. Applicants should contact the Council’s
Environmental Health Officer for more advice on 01702 215005 or at
Regulatory Services, P.O. Box 5558, Southend-on-Sea Borough Council, Civic
Centre, Victoria Avenue, Southend-on-Sea, SS2 6ZQ.

04 If construction works are to be considered outside of normal hours
especially overnight it is recommended that the applicant applies for a prior
consent application under section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act 1974. A
consent enables the applicant to conduct the works without the worry of
enforcement provided they comply with it. The applicant will have to submit
details of any noisy works including type of plant and machinery to be used,
proposed daily start and finish times, consultation with nearby residents and
businesses and duration and time scales of the works. The applicant should
contact the Regulatory Services Team at Southend-on-Sea Borough Council
for details.

05 The applicant is also reminded that this permission is separate to the need
to comply with Food Safety and Health & Safety at Work laws. These will
include the Food Safety Act 1990 (as amended), the Food Hygiene (England)
Regulations 2006, Regulation (EC) 852/2004 and the Health and Safety at
Work Etc. Act 1974. Applicants should contact the Council’s Regulatory
Services Officer for Food and Health and Safety for more advice on 01702
215005 or at Regulatory Services, Southend-on-Sea Borough Council, Civic
Centre, Victoria Avenue, Southend SS2 6ER.

121



This page is intentionally left blank



THE LOYAL TOAST
(PH)

UNIT 1

UNIT 2

MORRISONS

~L, CAFE

N CROSSIN T o
NANSIRNW /
< %a
o

e 4 8
kgg ‘ ENTRANCE

@ 3 \\“ \\
NSNS |

.

L

\

o | 2 |
o K

A Q\H\T\\i \

ect

N

—

/"1 \Existing Site Plan —\ [T———
" /1200 @ A0

QOO

Morrisons

— MORRISONS
STORE

_—

GENERAL NOTES

All work to be carried out in strict accordance with the current
Building Regulations and its latest amendments, and to the
complete satisfaction of the Local Authorities Building
Control.

Contractors are responsible for complying with all relevant
BS etc., and check that Building Control and Environmental
Health Departments are satisfied with the scope and content
of all work on completion and obtain any necessary
certificates.

All existing construction levels and dimensions to be checked
prior to construction, especially where new construction
evels and dimensions are to match existing.

All site dimensions and site levels must be checked on site.

This drawing must not be used for construction unless issued
for construction.

This drawing should be read in conjunction with all relevant
Engineer's and specialist drawings.

= == == \\/MS Site Boundary Line

Spaces from historic information on DB3 files and
Uploaded to WMS ICON for Information.

TTTTTTTTTTTTTT

PLANNING ISSUE

darnton

A RCMHITET CTURE
OOOOOO

84 Great Suffolk Street, London, SE1 OBE.
T: 0207 689 1434  www.darntonb3.com

CCCCCC QOO

Morrisons

PROJ
Refrigeration Replacement 2020
#281 WMS Southend Eastwood
DDDDDDD

General Arrangement

Existing Site Plan

SSSSS @A0 DRAWN CHECKED
1:200 FG VG
EEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE
January 2020 B

D B3 DRAWING NO.
14050 =DB3 =281 = 00 = DR = A =90 01
ECTNO-COMPANY- ZONE - LEVEL - TYPE - ROLE -NUMBER

NNNNNNNNNNNNNN

SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS

NOANOT []

MOOSVYTO L[] 441d4vO L[] SCEERRE

HLIAMLSAH3IGY []

H31SAHONVIN []

HONOHOaHONOT L]



This page is intentionally left blank



1A}

GENERAL NOTES

All work to be carried out in strict accordance with the current
Building Regulations and its latest amendments, and to the
complete satisfaction of the Local Authorities Building

Control.

\/ Contractors are responsible for complying with all relevant
BS etc., and check that Building Control and Environmental
Health Departments are satisfied with the scope and content
of all work on completion and obtain any necessary
certificates.

All existing construction levels and dimensions to be checked
prior to construction, especially where new construction
levels and dimensions are to match existing.

All site dimensions and site levels must be checked on site.
This drawing must not be used for construction unless issued

NOANOT []

for construction.

This drawing should be read in conjunction with all relevant
Engineer's and specialist drawings.

= == == \\/MS Site Boundary Line

== == == Proposed Plant Enclosure Application Boundary

—

-
—
\ﬁ’ \ THE LOYAL TOAST
| / (PH)
V\/VJ
— =
7
| \ 2 N “ \
.. y | \\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\‘ \\
| .V % N \{; CROSSING ///\E
\\\\\\\“\\\\\\‘ =
.- “ —=T ‘
\\\\\‘:‘}’» ﬁ ?/ > "‘\\-\
‘ rg& ‘ NTRANCE
| i \ LOBBY
~ | B
' ‘ e ngiisg? I
~ < .
G

SGEERRE

441d4vO L[]

MORRISONS
CAFE

0

Mor;fii%_;ons b
MORRISONS \

STORE |

MODOSYTO L[]

HLIAMLSAHAGY []

gk

—

e
i)

EIS
d31STIHONVIA []

31.03.20 |Issue for Planning FH
DR |CH
A RCMHI TECTURE
EEEEE
The Coach House, Monk Fryston Hall, Monk Fryston, Leeds, LS25 5DU.
T: 01977 681 001  www.darntonb3.com
CCCCCC Qoo

$oe
Morrisons
Since 1899
ppppppp
Refrigeration Replacement 2020

#281 WMS Southend Eastwood
DRAWING

General Arrangement
Proposed Site Plan

CCCCCCC

NNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNN

SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS

©32%| § 3
o & g 3z
4 O > 2
> S 2
S g S
:8
||'

23
3%
1
==l
S >» 2
o2}
Co g
Es8
@ |
39
HONOHOgGHDNOT []

/"1 "\Proposed Site Plan — [T——

l l
1:200 @ AO

SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS



AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW DT1 MODULAR PACK 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
DRY WEIGHT 7500kg


This page is intentionally left blank



LT

GENERAL NOTES

All work to be carried out in strict
accordance with the current Building
Regulations and its latest amendments,
and to the complete satisfaction of the
Local Authorities Building Control.

Contractors are responsible for
complying with all relevant BS etc., and
check that Building Control and
Environmental Health Departments are
satisfied with the scope and content of
all work on completion and obtain any
necessary certificates.

All existing construction levels and
dimensions to be checked prior to
construction, especially where new
construction levels and dimensions are
to match existing.

All site dimensions and site levels must
be checked on site.

This drawing must not be used for
construction unless issued for
construction.

THE LOYAL TOAST
(PH)

This drawing should be read in
conjunction with all relevant Engineer's
and specialist drawings.

= = == Site Boundary line

MORRISONS
STORE

[ [31.03.20]issue for Planning LA TrH |
[REV|DATE _|DESCRIPTION [oR[]eH]

PLANNING ISSUE

dom’ronB3

ARCHITETCTURE

LONDON
84 Great Suffolk Street, London, SE1 0BE.
T: 0207 689 1434 www.darntonb3.com

CLIENT U
B3]
' . Of -.-lls ons
PROJECT

Refrigeration Replacement 2020
#281 WMS Southend Eastwood
DRAWING

General Arrangement

Existing Site Location Plan

SCALE @A3 DRAWN CHECKED
1:1250 LA FH
CREATION DATE REVISION
MARCH 2020 -
DARNTONB3 DRAWING NO.

14050 -=DB3 =281 = 00 = DR = A =90_03
PROJECTNO-COMPANY- ZONE - LEVEL - TYPE - ROLE -NUMBER

(© COPYRIGHT: ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.

THIS DRAWING MUST BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL OTHER RELEVANT DRAWINGS
/AND INFORMATION.

m EXiSti n g S ite LoCatio n P I a n DO NOT SCALE OFF DRAWINGS USE DISPLAYED DIMENSIONS ONLY.

THE DRAWING OR INFORMATION MUST NOT BE USED FOR CONSTRUCTION UNLESS
EXPRESSLY ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION.

1 . 1 250 @ A3 ANY DISCREPANCIES MUST BE REPORTED TO DARNTONB3 IMMEDIATELY.

DARNTONEGS LTD WORK TO A MANAGEMENT SYSTEM WHICH IS APPROVED TO ISO-9001 BY
LRQA - CERTIFICATE NUMBER LRQA-0947162

HONOHOGHONOT [  H3LSAHONVIN [0 ado4dvdd [0 NMOLIMAN [0 HLIAMLISAHIGY [ MODSYID [ 101SiHd OO F1LSYOMAN O 441advD O Sd331 O NOANOT O



This page is intentionally left blank



6T

GENERAL NOTES

All work to be carried out in strict
accordance with the current Building
Regulations and its latest amendments,
and to the complete satisfaction of the
Local Authorities Building Control.

Contractors are responsible for
complying with all relevant BS etc., and
check that Building Control and
Environmental Health Departments are
satisfied with the scope and content of
all work on completion and obtain any
necessary certificates.

All existing construction levels and
dimensions to be checked prior to
construction, especially where new
construction levels and dimensions are
to match existing.

All site dimensions and site levels must
be checked on site.

This drawing must not be used for
construction unless issued for
construction.

This drawing should be read in
conjunction with all relevant Engineer's
and specialist drawings.

- = == == Site Boundary line

MORRISONS
STORE

== == == == Proposed Plant Enclosure
Application Boundary

[ [31.03.20]lssue for Planning LA TFH |
[REV|DATE _|DESCRIPTION [[oRT [cHT]

PLANNING ISSUE

dom’ronB3

ARCHITETCTURE

LONDON
84 Great Suffolk Street, London, SE1 0BE.
T: 0207 689 1434 www.darntonb3.com

o

CLIENT

0

Morrisons

PROJECT

Refrigeration Replacement 2020
#281 WMS Southend Eastwood
DRAWING

General Arrangement

Proposed Site Location Plan

SCALE @ A3 DRAWN CHECKED
1:1250 LA FH
CREATION DATE REVISION
MARCH 2020 -
DARNTONB3 DRAWING NO.

14050 -DB3 =281 = 00 =~ DR = A =90_04
PROJECTNO -COMPANY- ZONE - LEVEL - TYPE - ROLE -NUMBER

(© COPYRIGHT: ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.

THIS DRAWING MUST BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL OTHER RELEVANT DRAWINGS
/AND INFORMATION.

m P ro pOSed S ite LOCati O n P | a n DO NOT SCALE OFF DRAWINGS USE DISPLAYED DIMENSIONS ONLY.

THE DRAWING OR INFORMATION MUST NOT BE USED FOR CONSTRUCTION UNLESS
EXPRESSLY ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION.

1 . 1 2 50 @ A3 ANY DISCREPANCIES MUST BE REPORTED TO DARNTONB3 IMMEDIATELY.

DARNTONEGS LTD WORK TO A MANAGEMENT SYSTEM WHICH IS APPROVED TO ISO-9001 BY
LRQA - CERTIFICATE NUMBER LRQA-0947162

HONOHOGHONOT [  H3LSAHONVIN [0 ado4dvdd [0 NMOLIMAN [0 HLIAMLISAHAEY [ MODSYID [ 101SiHg OO F1LSYOMAN O 441advD [0 Sd331 O NOANOT O


AutoCAD SHX Text_2
NEW DT1 MODULAR PACK 

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
DRY WEIGHT 7500kg


This page is intentionally left blank



Application boundary

Application houndary

51283

Existing rdller shutter doors

_ Ground Level

mExisting Elevation A

1:50 @ Al

Application boundary

Existing bollard

TET

8540

Existing fire works container —

to be removed

5123

Existing building
projection to be
removed to allocate
refrigeration plant

Existing building projection to be
removed to allocate refrigeration plant

Application boundary

‘ Existing Fire works container

1924

Ground Level

Application boundary

Existing building
projection to be

removed to allocate

refrigeration plant

Ex[sting Fire works container

Application boundary

5123

1924

i |
1
I
1
1
1
1
1

EXTERNAL
FIREWORKS
CONTAINER

\_ Elevation

mExisting Plan

1:100 @ Al

Ground Level

mExisting Elevation B

1:50 @ Al

mView 1

2810

L— Existing door to be removed

Existing Fire works container

L— Existing bollard

Existing container to be removed

/"3 \Existing Elevation C

1:50 @ Al

mView 2

2810

AN

/ N \
[ Elevation \

| (@]

V3adv d3snsid

-----_--------d

GENERAL NOTES

All work to be carried out in strict accordance with the current
Building Regulations and its latest amendments, and to the
complete satisfaction of the Local Authorities Building
Control.

Contractors are responsible for complying with all relevant
BS etc., and check that Building Control and Environmental
Health Departments are satisfied with the scope and content
of all work on completion and obtain any necessary
certificates.

All existing construction levels and dimensions to be checked
prior to construction, especially where new construction
levels and dimensions are to match existing.

All site dimensions and site levels must be checked on site.

This drawing must not be used for construction unless issued
for construction.

This drawing should be read in conjunction with all relevant
Engineer's and specialist drawings.

===m===  Application Boundary

CAGE CONTAINING
CYLINDERS

5123

CANOPY U/S

uP
1245

L— Existing Fire works container

Us=2357

H
M

0S0¢:
02ST:

STEP UP 100

W=1100
H=2000

‘— ‘31.03.20 ‘IssueforPIanning ‘LA ‘FH ‘
|REV |DATE _ |DESCRIPTION [oR [CH |

PLANNING ISSUE

A RCMHITET CTURE

LONDON
84 Great Suffolk Street, London, SE1 OBE.
T: 0207 689 1434  www.darmntonb3.com

darnton%

Morrisons

Refrigeration Replacement 2020
#281 WMS Southend Eastwood
DRAWING

General Arrangement

Existing Plant Enclosure Elevation

SCALE @Al DRAWN CHECKED
1:50 LA FH
CREATION DATE REVISION
MARCH 2020 -
DARNTONB3 DRAWING NO.

14050 =DB3 =281 = 00 = DR = A =20 16
PROJECTNO-COMPANY- ZONE - LEVEL - TYPE - ROLE -NUMBER

(© COPYRIGHT: ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

THIS DRAWING MUST BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL OTHER RELEVANT DRAWINGS
AND INFORMATION.

DO NOT SCALE OFF DRAWINGS USE DISPLAYED DIMENSIONS ONLY.

THE DRAWING OR INFORMATION MUST NOT BE USED FOR CONSTRUCTION UNLESS
EXPRESSLY ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION.

ANY DISCREPANCIES MUST BE REPORTED TO DARNTONB3 IMMEDIATELY.

DARNTONEGS LTD WORK TO A MANAGEMENT SYSTEM WHICH IS APPROVED TO 1SO-9001 BY
LRQA - CERTIFICATE NUMBER LRQA-0947162'

NOANOT []

MODSY1O [ 441d4vO [ Sa3an O

HIAMLSAH3IGY []

d31SIHONVIA []

HONOYOaHDNOT []



This page is intentionally left blank



€eT

Application Boundary

Application Boundary

[TTT1¢

-

N N S (1
\ \ ) '
N | (LT TP T T T T P T T gy e T AT T T LT ﬁﬁ jj
N te plinth for plant New timber acoustic cladding fixed to Palisade —— New Armco barrier
eéw concrete plinth for pian fencing and gates for refrigeration plant compound
/"1 \Proposed Elevation A
1:50 @ A1

- >
© ]
© o)
c c
=} >
o o
O i)
C C
o Qo
IS, ©
£ L
(0N (0N
Q o
< <
— Existing Morrison's Store

mProposed Elev

New, Armco_barrier

ation B

1:50 @ A1

New timber acoustic cladding fixed to Palisade
fencing for refrigeration plant compound

Application boundary

ffffffffffff Top of Plan Compound Acousic Fening Lov

New timber acoustic cladding fixed
to Palisade fencing and gates for
refrigeration plant compound

] SR, RN |

New concrete plinth for plant

Application boundary

Existing building — =

P

o)

IMIRININIRIN]

{
[

B LGowdlee

New Armco barrier

Top o Plant Compound Acousic Fencing Level

g Goundlovel

New concrete plinth for plant

mProposed Elevation C

1:50 @ A1

New Armco barrier

op of Plant Compound Acoustic Fencing Level

T
S vARL e S S

VA

Ground Level

New timber acoustic cladding
fixed to Palisade fencing and

[ Elevation

New Armco Barrier to be
/ installed

GENERAL NOTES

All work to be carried out in strict accordance with the current
Building Regulations and its latest amendments, and to the
complete satisfaction of the Local Authorities Building
Control.

Contractors are responsible for complying with all relevant
BS etc., and check that Building Control and Environmental
Health Departments are satisfied with the scope and content
of all work on completion and obtain any necessary
certificates.

All existing construction levels and dimensions to be checked
prior to construction, especially where new construction
levels and dimensions are to match existing.

All site dimensions and site levels must be checked on site.

This drawing must not be used for construction unless issued
for construction.

This drawing should be read in conjunction with all relevant
Engineer's and specialist drawings.

Proposed Refrigeration Boundary Line

CANOPY U/S = 5123

gates
ARMCO BARRIER o
E N [rsussroncel | N R
' T PALISADE FENCE
g 4000 [13'-2"] !’M“
= I |
1000 [3-37] Il
= 5 g |
Fg
(.
o 2 |
5 5 = g it
\ Elevation El g é % g Il §§
- ||
— >
1 }5 %
=z |
= _ o
) "
o — I
I \ | ||
6000 [19-8"] o
' PALISADE FENCE g
E — il
w mHIT&M\SS FENCEm m J
? ARMCO BARRIER
\ Elevation /
S
mProposed Plan
1:100 @ A1
l 27.03.20 |Issue for Planning LA |FH
REV |DATE DESCRIPTION DR |CH

PLANNING ISSUE

darnton

AR CMHITETCTURE

LONDON
84 Great Suffolk Street, London, SE1 OBE.
T: 0207 689 1434  www.darntonb3.com

Morrisons

Refrigeration Replacement 2020
#281 WMS Southend Eastwood
DRAWING

General Arrangement

Proposed Plant Enclosure Elevation

SCALE @ A1 DRAWN CHECKED
1:50 LA FH
CREATION DATE REVISION
MARCH 2020 -
DARNTONB3 DRAWING NO.

14050 =DB3 = 281 = 00 = DR = A =20 17
PROJECT NO-COMPANY- ZONE - LEVEL - TYPE - ROLE -NUMBER

(© COPYRIGHT: ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

THIS DRAWING MUST BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL OTHER RELEVANT DRAWINGS
AND INFORMATION

DO NOT SCALE OFF DRAWINGS USE DISPLAYED DIMENSIONS ONLY.

THE DRAWING OR INFORMATION MUST NOT BE USED FOR CONSTRUCTION UNLESS
EXPRESSLY ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION.

ANY DISCREPANCIES MUST BE REPORTED TO DARNTONB3 IMMEDIATELY.

DARNTONEGS LTD WORK TO A MANAGEMENT SYSTEM WHICH IS APPROVED TO 1S0-9001 BY
LRQA - CERTIFICATE NUMBER LRQA-0947162'

NOANOT []

MODOSY1O L[] 441d4vO L[] Sa3at Ol

HLIAMLSAH3GY []

d31SIHONVIA []

HONOYOaHONOT L]


AutoCAD SHX Text_4
NEW DT1 MODULAR PACK 

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
DRY WEIGHT 7500kg


This page is intentionally left blank



Morrisons
Western Approaches Eastwood



9€T

Application site




LET

Appl

ication site and view
site boundar

to south and




View to west

138



6€T

View north to Western Approaches




Existing plant to be removed

140



	Agenda
	 Contents List and Introduction
	4 20/00311/BC3M - Car Park at Former Gas Works Site, Eastern Esplanade (Kursaal Ward)
	location plan
	site plan
	Gas Works Car Park

	5 20/00328/BC3M - Southchurch Park East, Lifstan Way (Thorpe Ward)
	Location Plan
	Site Plan
	Southchurch Park East

	6 20/00655/FUL - 85 Western Road, Leigh-on-Sea (West Leigh Ward)
	location
	topographical
	ex GF and site
	ex 1F
	ex veh acc
	ex survey
	ex elevs
	905.210.00 prop site and GF
	905.211.00 prop 1F
	905.212.00 prop roof
	905.213.00 prop elevs
	905.214.00 prop st sc
	905.215.00
	2000655 photos (2018)

	7 20/00580/FUL - Morrison's, Western Approaches (St Laurence Ward)
	90001B Existing Site Plan
	Sheets and Views
	14050-DB3-281-00-DR-A-90001 Existing Site Plan-BOUND-A0


	90002 Proposed Site Plan
	Sheets and Views
	14050-DB3-281-00-DR-A-90002 Proposed Site Plan-BOUND-A0


	90003 Existing Location Plan
	Sheets and Views
	14050-DB3-281-00-DR-A-90003 Existing Site Location Plan-BOUND-A3


	90004 Proposed Location Plan
	Sheets and Views
	14050-DB3-281-00-DR-A-90004 Proposed Site Location Plan-BOUND-A3


	20016 Existing Plant Enclosure Elevations
	Sheets and Views
	14050-DB3-281-00-DR-A-20016 Existing Plant Enclosure Elevation-BOUND-A1


	20017 Proposed Plant Enclosure Elevations
	Sheets and Views
	14050-DB3-281-00-DR-A-20017 Proposed Plant Enclosure Elevation-BOUND-A1


	Morrisons


